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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including théormation incorporated by reference herein, aors “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securithes of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of ticer8s Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, which includes information concerningmlans; objectives; goals; strategies; future eydatare revenues or performance; the
impact of the macroeconomic environment in bothUt®. and internationally on sales and our busisegsnents; strategic long-term
investments; changes in capital expenditures;ipact of consumer confidence; litigation and simiggues; pending tax assessments;
financial flexibility; the impact of initiatives taccelerate growth, expand market share and aiades from the standard mattress market; the
improvements in our Net sales; efforts to expansliimss within established accounts, improve accprattuctivity, reduce costs and operating
expenses and improve manufacturing productivitjtiatives to improve gross margin; the verticakgration of our business; the developrr
rollout and market acceptance of new productsability to further invest in the business and iara awareness; our ability to meet financial
obligations and continue to comply with the termswr Senior Credit Facility, including its finaatiratio covenants; effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates on our reported earningsexpected sources of cash flow; our ability teeefively manage cash; our ability to align
costs with sales expectations; and other informatiat is not historical information. Many of thetatements appear, in particular, under the
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis nfRcial Condition and Results of Operations” in ME of Part 1l of this report. When
used in this report, the words “estimates,” “expgctanticipates,” “projects,” “plans,” “intends;believes” and variations of such words or
similar expressions are intended to identify fomvlroking statements. These forward-looking stat@siare based upon our current
expectations and various assumptions. There cao lssurance that we will realize our expectat@rtbat our beliefs will prove correct.

There are a number of risks and uncertaintiesabiald cause our actual results to differ materifityn the forward-looking statements
contained in this report. Important factors thatldecause our actual results to differ materialnd those expressed as forward-looking
statements are set forth in this report, includinder the heading “Risk Factors” under ITEM 1A aftPL of this report. There may be other
factors that may cause our actual results to diffaterially from the forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements attributable to yply only as of the date of this report and areresgly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements included in this report. pkes may be required by law, we undertake no atiig to publicly update or revise any of
the forward-looking statements, whether as a reguiew information, future events, or otherwise.

When used in this report, except as specificallgdmtherwise, the term “Tempur-Pedic Internatidnafers to Tempur-Pedic
International Inc. only, and the terms “Companyye;” “our,” “ours” and “us” refer to Tempur-Pedinternational Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the leading manufacturer, marketer andiloligtr of premium mattresses and pillows, whichsg# in approximately 80
countries under the TEMPUR® and Tempur-Pedic® lsakide believe our premium mattresses and pillowsyasre comfortable than
standard bedding products because our proprietasspre-relieving TEMPUR® material is temperatesgtive, has a high density and
therapeutically conforms to the body.

We have two reportable operating segments: Nortlerdaa and International. These reportable segnaatstrategic business units that
are managed separately based on the fundameritakdifes in their geographies. The North Amerigaerating segment consists of two U.S.
manufacturing facilities and our North Americantdizution subsidiaries. The International segmeamtsists of our manufacturing facility in
Denmark, whose customers include all of our distidn subsidiaries and third party distributorsside the North American operating
segment. We evaluate segment performance basedt®als and Operating income. For the resultsiobosiness segments, see ITEM 15.
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules, NotéBsiness Segment Information”, under Part I\to$ report.

We sell our premium mattresses and pillows thrdiegin distribution channels: Retail (furniture anedding, non-spring and department
stores); Direct (direct response, internet and @mpwned stores); Healthcare (hospitals, nursing homesthcare professionals and med
retailers); and Third party distributors in couasrivhere we do not sell directly through our owbssdiaries.

Our principal executive office is located at 17a8die Fox Way, Lexington, Kentucky 40511 and olepkone number is (800) 878-
8889. Tempur Pedic International Inc. was incorfemtainder the laws of the State of Delaware in @eper 2002. Our annual reports on F
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répon Form 8-K and any amendments to such reptets\ith or furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to Sectid(e or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act B84,%s amended (Exchange Act), are
available free of charge on our website at www.terppdic.com as soon as reasonably practicablesaftdr reports are electronically filed w
the SEC.

You may read and copy any materials the Compaag filith the SEC at the SEC’s public reference rabd00 F Street NE,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infation about the operation of the public referemma by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC also maintains an internet sitedbiatains reports, proxy and information statemeansd other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC. The websifehe SEC is www.sec.gov.

Market Opportunity and Competitive Strengths
Global Market

Most standard mattresses are made using innerspaimdjare primarily sold through retail furnitureldbedding stores. Alternatives to
innerspring mattresses include viscoelastic anthfottresses, airbeds and waterbeds (collectialgdnon-innerspring mattresses).

The pillow market has a traditional and a specisfigment. Traditional pillows are generally mad&uwf cost foam or feathers, other
than down. Specialty pillows are comprised of dftrmatives to traditional pillows, including viselastic, foam, sponge, rubber and down.
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Our Market Position

We are the worldwide leader in premium sleep. Wefacused on developing, manufacturing and margetdvanced sleep surfaces !
help improve the quality of life for people arouthé world. We believe demand for our products isdpériven by significant growth in our
core demographic market, increased brand awaramesthe broadening appeal of our new products.ofisumers continue to prefer
alternatives to standard innerspring mattressespramaucts become more widely available and asoamd gains broader consumer
recognition, we expect that our premium productbaeintinue to attract sales from the standard resst market.

Superior Product Offerings

Our high-quality, high-density, temperature-semsill EMPUR® material distinguishes our products fratimer products in the
marketplace. Viscoelastic pressure-relieving matevas originally developed by the U.S. Nationat@weutics and Space Administration
(NASA) in 1971 in an effort to relieve astronaufdtte G—force experienced during Idff, and NASA subsequently made this formula pujl
available. The NASA viscoelastic pressure-relievimgterial originally proved unstable for commerciak. However, after several years of
research and development, we succeeded in devglaginoprietary formulation and proprietary processianufacture a stable, durable and
commercially viable product. The key feature of pressure-relieving TEMPUR® material is its tempara sensitivity. It conforms to the
body, becoming softer in warmer areas where thg ithaking the most contact with the pressuresvislig TEMPUR® material and
remaining firmer in cooler areas where less bodyaxt is being made. As the material molds to thayts shape, the neck and spine are
supported. Our pressure-relieving TEMPUR® mategisb has improved durability and enhanced comiierdddition, clinical evidence
indicates that our products are both effective est efficient for the prevention and treatmenpiassure ulcers or bed sores, a major problem
for elderly and bed-ridden patients.

Increasing Global Brand Awareness

We believe consumers in the U.S. and internatiptiatreasingly associate our brand name with puamguality products that enal
better overall sleep. Our TEMPUR®rand has been in existence since 1991 and italgotareness is reinforced by our high level of
customer satisfaction, as demonstrated by the rethog received by Consumer Reports, the Arthisindation, the NASA Space Foundat
Good Housekeeping and Consumers Digest.

Vertically Integrated Manufacturing and Supply Qhai

We produce all of our proprietary TEMPUR® matemfabur own manufacturing facilities in the U.S. d@adrope in order to precisely
maintain the specifications of our products. Wedwe that our vertical integration, from the martifze of the TEMPUR® material and
fabrication and construction of our products thitotige marketing, sale and delivery of our produetsures a high level of quality and
performance that is not matched by our competition.

Strong Financial Performance

Our business generates significant cash flow dilee¢a@ombination of our sales, gross and operatiagyins, low maintenance capital
expenditures and limited working capital requiretsefor the year ended December 31, 2011, our Grogis margin and Net income margin
were 52.4% and 15.5%, respectively, on Net sal& &f billion. Our Net income margin allows our mess model the flexibility to invest in
our global brand, invest in research and developmed new products, enhance our sales force, imvestr manufacturing operations, invest
in information systems and recruit experienced rgameent and other personnel.
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Significant Growth Opportunities

We believe there are significant opportunitiesaikcetmarket share from the innerspring mattresssimgas well as other sleep surfaces.
Our market share of the overall mattress industrglatively small in terms of both dollars andtsnivhich we believe provides us with a
significant opportunity for continued growth. Bydaidening our brand awareness and offering supggep surfaces, we believe consumers
will over time adopt our products at an increasiaig, which should expand our market share. Adutitiy, by expanding distribution within
our existing accounts, we believe we have the dppdy to grow our business. By extending our prddine through our segmentation of
products, we should be able to continue to exphadtumber of Tempur-Pedic models offered at thedlretore level, which should lead to
increased sales. Based on this strategy we baiéweus on expanding distribution within our exigtiaccounts provides for continued growth
opportunities and market shares gains. As of Deeer®b, 2011 our products were sold in approximafe®p0 furniture and bedding retail
stores in North America, out of a total of approately 11,500 stores we have identified as appraptargets. Within this addressable market,
our plan is to increase our total penetration total of 9,000 to 10,000 over the long-term. Ingionally, our products are available in
approximately 5,200 furniture retail and departnstotes, out of a total of approximately 8,000 ssowe have identified as appropriate targets.
Accordingly, expanding our store distribution afsovides for continued growth and market share dppdies. As consumers continue their
shift toward the purchase of non-innerspring mastiegroducts and sleep surfaces we believe we drpositioned to capitalize on this growth
opportunity. However, our business may be affebiedompetition and general business and econonniditions that could have an impact on
demand for our products, limit our market share éecrease sales.

Our Products
Mattresses

Our mattresses represented 66.6% of our Net sal231i1 and are our leading product category histlyi. Our mattresses are compc
of proprietary multi-layer, temperature sensitipegssure-relieving TEMPUR® material. We offer several mattress models, sohwehich are
covered by one or more patents and/or patent atiglits. We also routinely introduce new mattresseis launch new products and update
our existing mattress products in North America emernationally.

Pillows

Our premium pillow offerings include a variety ayles and represented 10.7% of Net sales in 200f plows provide plush and
pressure-relieving comfort as the temperature seaesnaterial molds to the body.

Other Products

Our other products represented 22.7% of otrsiies in 2011. This category includes foundatigsed to support our mattress
products, adjustable bed bases and many other tfpdferings including a variety of cushions artler comfort products.

Marketing and Sales

We primarily sell at wholesale through three distichannels: Retail, Healthcare and Third party.riiéeket directly to consumers in t
U.S. and certain International markets throughivect channel. Our marketing strategy is to insee@onsumer awareness of the benefits of
our products and to further associate our brandenaith better overall sleep and premium qualitydorets. Throughout 2011, consistent with
our strategy, we made additional investments iregtéhing to increase brand awareness to drive éugpowth in certain key North American
and International markets. In the U.S., we contitaugvest in our “Ask Me” ™ media campaign. Intationally, the “Weightless” media
campaign was successfully launched in 2011. In 2@&2will expand our advertising to additional kagrkets in North America, and further
expand our “Weightless” media campaign to additidmizrnational markets.
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In 2010, we also introduced a product segntiemtatrategy, which groups our products into adllens with multiple models and
price points, differentiated by functionality aruesifications. In 2011, we introduced a new prodggment in North America titled the
TEMPUR®-Contour Collection, which replaced the TEWR® Collection, and launched the TEMPUR-Cloud®llection in the Internation
segment. Our North American product segments irctEMPUR®-Contour, TEMPUR®-HD and TEMPUR-Cloud ®ollections. We
recently launched the TEMPUR-Simplicity ™ collectim North America, which features mattress offgsifor all product segments. Our
International product segments include TEMPUR®, THMR®-Sensation, and TEMPUR-Cloud ® collections.

Retail

The Retail channel sells to furniture and bedd@tgiters and department stores, among others. @wilRhannel represented 87.8% of
Net sales in 2011. Our top five customers for tharg ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 accountaggasximately 20.0% of our Net sal
and accounted for approximately 18.9% of our N&isstor the year ended December 31, 2009. Theoliosse or more of these customers
could negatively impact our profitability.

Direct

The Direct channel sells directly to consumersugtoour call center operations and the internéténU.S. and the United Kingdom, as
well as our company-owned stores in certain intgonal subsidiaries. Our direct response progrageta customers in these markets through
television, radio, home mailings, magazine, andsmaper product offering advertisements. Our Dicheinnel represented 7.1% of Net sale
2011.

Healthcare

The Healthcare channel sells to hospitals, nuisorges, healthcare professionals and medical retdfiat utilize our products to treat
patients, or may recommend or sell them to thénts$. In addition, in the U.S. we are partneririthvaealthcare vendors in a sales method
whereby the vendors integrate our TEMPUR® matémial their products to improve patient comfort ameliness. These healthcare partners
market our joint product offerings through estatdid distribution channels. This channel represebt#4% of Net sales in 2011.

Third party

Third party sales represented 2.7% of Net sal@9iri. We utilize third party distributors to sermarkets that are currently outside the
range of our whollyawned subsidiaries. Our approach to these devejapiarkets has allowed us to build sales, marketimybrand awarene
with minimal capital risk. We have entered intcaagements with third party distributors locatedjproximately 60 countries. As these
markets mature we may seek to convert these taiy pelationships into wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Seasonality

A significant portion of our Net sales is attribbito sales in our North American Retail chanpatticularly sales to furniture and
bedding stores. We believe that our sales of nssteand pillows to furniture and bedding storegygically subject to modest seasonality
inherent in the bedding industry with sales expetbebe generally lower in the second and fourthrggrs and higher in the first and third
quarters. Internationally, specifically in Europes are subject to seasonality with Net sales Idwéne third quarter as compared to the other
quarters during the year.

Operations
Manufacturing and Related Technology
Our mattresses and pillows are currently manufadtim our 517,000 square-foot facility located iardp, Denmark, our 540,000

square-foot facility in Duffield, Virginia and o@&00,000 square-foot facility in Albuquerque, Newxit®. Most of the sewing and production
of mattress and pillow covers is outsourced taltpiarty suppliers.
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Suppliers

We obtain the raw materials used to produce owsspre-relieving TEMPUR® material from outside sastdWe currently acquire
chemicals and proprietary additives from a numiieuppliers with manufacturing locations aroundwueld. We expect to continue these
supplier relationships for the foreseeable futWe.do not consider ourselves dependent upon aglesinitside vendor as a source of raw
materials and believe that sufficient alternativarses of supply for the same or similar raw matsrare available. Additionally, we source the
manufacturing of our adjustable bed bases and fatiorts from third party manufacturers. We do notsider ourselves dependent upon any
single outside manufacturer as a source of thesdupts.

Research and Development

Our research and development center located iniéddiffVirginia conducts technology and product depenent and product testing. C
Aarup, Denmark research and development centeructstechnology and product development. Researdlilavelopment expenses were
$9.9 million, $7.4 million and $6.5 million in 2012010 and 2009, respectively.

Competition

The mattress and pillow industries are highly cotitipe. Participants in the mattress and pillowustties have traditionally competed
primarily based on price. Our premium mattressespmie with a number of different types of premiumd atandard mattress alternatives,
including innerspring mattresses, foam mattresgagerbeds, futons, air beds and other air-supponittresses that are sold through a variety
of channels, including furniture and bedding stpdepartment stores, mass merchants, wholesals, ¢elbmarketing programs, television
infomercials and catalogs. The pillow industry limracterized by a large number of competitors, radrveéhich is dominant.

The standard mattress market in the U.S. is domdhlay manufacturers of innerspring mattresses, thitte nationally recognized brand
names: Sealy, Serta and Simmons. These three dtonpelso offer premium innerspring mattresses@oilctively have a significant share
the premium mattress market in the U.S. Select @dn@forporation competes in the non-spring mattneasket and focuses on the air mattress
market segment. The balance of the mattress miarkle¢ U.S. is served by a large number of othemufecturers, primarily operating on a
regional basis. Many of these competitors andaitiqular, the three largest brands of innerspnvagtresses named above, have significant
financial, marketing and manufacturing resourceeng brand name recognition, and sell their pregltirough broader and more established
distribution channels. During the past several yemnumber of our competitors, including Sealyt&Sand Simmons, have offered viscoelastic
mattress and pillow products, including several peaminent product introductions in 2011.

The international market for mattresses and pillesxgenerally served by a large number of manufacsu primarily operating on a
regional basis. Some of these manufacturers afeo viécoelastic mattress and pillow products.

Intellectual Property

We hold various U.S. and foreign patents and patpplications regarding certain elements of thégtleand function of many of our
mattress and pillow products.

As of December 31, 2011, we held trademark registra worldwide, which we believe have significaatue and are important to the
marketing of our products to retailers. TEMPUR® drainpur-Pedic® are trademarks registered with thited States Patent and Trademark
Office. In addition, we have U.S. applications piegdor additional marks. Several of our trademdrlge been registered, or are the subject of
pending applications, in various foreign countrigach U.S. trademark registration is renewablefiniely as long as the mark remains in use.
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Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to state, local anddgoreonsumer protection and other regulationsirgjab the mattress and pillow
industry. These regulations vary among the statdsauntries in which we do business. The reguiatgenerally impose requirements as to
the proper labeling of bedding merchandise, regiris regarding the identification of merchandiséraew” or otherwise, controls as to
hygiene and other aspects of product handling aledasd penalties for violations. The U.S. ConsuRreduct Safety Commission has adoy
rules relating to fire retardancy standards forrttegtress industry. Many foreign jurisdictions ategulate fire retardancy standards. Future
changes to these standards may require modificatmour products to comply with these additionahdards. We are also subject to
environmental and health and safety requiremertts i@pard to the manufacture of our products. Wesmade and will continue to make
capital and other expenditures necessary to comiphyall these requirements, currently these exjieres are immaterial to our financial
results. We believe that we are in material cormgkawith the applicable federal, state, local amdifjn rules and regulations governing our
business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately 1g3@floyees, with approximately 800 in North Amerid@0 in Denmark and 700
in the rest of the world. Certain of our employgeBenmark are covered by a government labor uc@nmiract as required by Danish law.
None of our U.S. employees are covered by a colletiargaining agreement. We believe our relatigitls our employees are generally go
Executive Officers of the Registrant

Certain information concerning our executive officas of the date of this report are set forthwelthere are no family relationships

between any of the persons listed below, or betvaegrof such persons and any of our directors gip@nsons nominated or chosen by us to
become a director or executive officer.

Name Age Position
Mark Sarvary 52 President and Chief Executive Offic
Dale E. Williams 48 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Richard W. Andersor 51 Executive Vice President and President, North Aoa
Matthew D. Clift 52 Executive Vice President of Global Operatis
Lou H. Jone 61 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &g
David Montgomery 51 Executive Vice President and President of Inteomati Operation
Brad Patrick 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resoudféser
Bhaskar Rar 46 Chief Accounting Officer and Senior Vice PresidEmance
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Mark Sarvaryjoined Tempur-Pedic International in June 2008 serdes as President and Chief Executive Offic@renfipur-Pedic
International. Prior to joining Tempur-Pedic, frdmnuary 2008 until June 2008, Mr. Sarvary serveahadperating Partner with CVC Capital
Partners, a global private equity firm. Prior to CMrom March 2004 to October 2007, Mr. Sarvary wWesExecutive Vice President and
President of Campbell Soup Company, North Ametigesion, responsible for $6 billion in businesssluding Campbell Soup, Pepperidge
Farm, Pace, Prego and V8 as well as Godiva’s globsihess. From 2002 until 2004, Mr. Sarvary wasRhesident of Campbell’s Pepperidge
Farm division. Prior to joining Campbell’s, from4®to 2002, Mr. Sarvary was the CEO of J. Crew @yduoc., and from 1993 to 1999 he
worked for Nestle, most recently as the PresidéttieStouffer's Frozen Food division. Earlier iis lsareer, Mr. Sarvary worked as a strategy
consultant with Bain & Company and in sales andket@mg roles with IBM in Europe. Mr. Sarvary recedl/his BSc in Physics from Kent
University in the United Kingdom and an MBA from $EAD Business School in France.

Dale E. Williamgoined Tempur-Pedic International in July 2003 ardves as Executive Vice President and Chief Finh@xficer.
From November 2001 through 2002, Mr. Williams seras Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHoheywell Control Products, a
division of Honeywell International, Inc. From 20602001, Mr. Williams served as Vice President @hikf Financial Officer of Saga
Systems, Inc./Software AG, Inc. Prior to that, M#illiams spent 15 years in various management jpositat General Electric Company, most
recently as Vice President and Chief Financial €@ffiof GE Information Services, Inc. Mr. Williamaceived his B.A. degree in finance from
Indiana University.

Richard W. Andersgnined Tempur-Pedic International in July 2006 aedves as Executive Vice President and Presidemth N
America. From 1983 to 2006, Mr. Anderson was eiygibby The Gillette Company, which became a pafittef Procter & Gamble Company
in 2005. Mr. Anderson most recently served as tloe Yresident of Marketing for Oral-B and BraurNiarth America. Previously, Mr.
Anderson was the Vice President of Global BusiMdasagement for Duracell. Mr. Anderson has heldesgvmanagement positions in
marketing and sales as well as overseeing branginguct development and strategic planning. Mrdémson obtained B.S. and M.B.A.
degrees from Virginia Tech.

Matthew D. Cliftjoined TempurPedic International in December 2004 and servé&asutive Vice President of Global Operations, \
responsibilities including manufacturing and reskand development. From 1991 to December 2004Clift.was employed by Lexmark
International where he most recently served as President and General Manager of the consumetepaivision. From 1981 to 1991, Mr.
Clift was employed by IBM Corporation and held sevenanagement positions in research and developamehmanufacturing. Mr. Clift
obtained his B.S. degree in chemical engineeriog fthe University of Kentucky.

Lou H. Jonegoined Tempur-Pedic International in June 2009 serdes as Executive Vice President, General CoammskEecretary.
From July 2007 to January 2009, Ms. Jones was eraglby Papa John's International, where she sagd&general Counsel. From March
1998 to July 2007, Ms. Jones was employed by Blostdy Inc., serving as Senior Vice President, Gaigoand International Law. From May
1984 to March 1998, Ms. Jones was a partner anelsblaer at the law firm of Thompson & Knight. Mianes earned a B.A. degree from the
University of Texas, a B.G.S. degree from the Ursitg of Nebraska and a J.D. degree from Southesthbtlist University.

David Montgomeryoined Tempur-Pedic International in February 2608 serves as Executive Vice President and Prasiflen
International Operations, with responsibilitiesliming marketing and sales. From 2001 to NovemB&22Mr. Montgomery was employed by
Rubbermaid, Inc., where he served as Presidentbb&maid Europe. From 1988 to 2001, Mr. Montgontesig various management
positions at Black & Decker Corporation, most rdfyeas Vice President of Black & Decker Europe, M&East and Africa. Mr. Montgomery
received his B.A. degree, with honors, from L' Ec8luperieure de Commerce de Reims, France and édeidPolytechnic, London.

Brad Patrickjoined Tempur-Pedic International in September 28dd serves as Executive Vice President and Chiefah Resources
Officer. From 2005 to September 2010, Mr. Patridsvemployed by the Sara Lee Corporation wherevedas Senior Vice President of
Human Resources. Mr. Patrick was employed by Thiet@ Company from 2004 to 2005, which later beegrart of The Procter & Gamble
Company, Delta Air Lines from 2000 to 2004 andd-tiy, Inc. from 1988 to 2000 where he held sevegaior human resources positions.
Mr. Patrick received his B.A. from the UniversityKentucky with an emphasis in Personnel and IntaldRelations.
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Bhaskar Ragined TempurPedic International in January 2004 and since A1 has served as Senior Vice President Finamt
Chief Accounting Officer. From February 2010 torA@011, Mr. Rao served as Senior Vice Presidé@tmategic Planning and Corporate
Development and Chief Accounting Officer. From M2306 to February 2011, Mr. Rao served as Vice Beasiof Strategic Planning and
Chief Accounting Officer. From October 2005 to M2306, Mr. Rao served as Vice President of Stratefioning. From January 2004 to
October 2005, he served as Director of Financiahifihg and Analysis. From 2002 until December 2003,Rao was employed by Ernst &
Young LLP as a Senior Manager in the assurancédasidess advisory group. Mr. Rao was employed tliuk Andersen LLP from 1994
until 2002. Mr. Rao graduated from Bellarmine Uarsity with B.A. degrees in Accounting and Econanidr. Rao is also a Certified Public
Accountant.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other infornaatiincluded in this report should be carefully coesed. Please also see “Special Note
Regarding ForwarrLooking Statements” on page i.

Unfavorable economic and market conditions could reduce our sales and profitability and as a result, our operating results may be adversely
affected.

Our business has been affected by general busanelssconomic conditions, and these conditions cloale an impact on future demi
for our products. Although demand in the U.S. nestrindustry, and in our business particularly,rowpd in 2011, the U.S. macroeconomic
environment remains uncertain and was the primaetof in a slowdown in the mattress industry stgrth 2008. In addition, our International
segment experienced weakening as a result of ganesimess and economic conditions. The global @egnremains unstable, and we expect
the economic environment to continue to be chaltengs continued economic uncertainty has genegalgn households less confidence to
make discretionary purchases.

In particular, the financial crisis that affectée tbanking system and financial markets and theeotiuncertainty in global economic
conditions have resulted in a tightening in thelitrmarkets, a low level of liquidity in many fineial markets and volatility in credit, equity
and fixed income markets. There could be a numbether effects from these economic developmentswrbusiness, including reduced
consumer demand for products; insolvency of outaguers, resulting in increased provisions for drexfises; insolvency of our key suppliers
resulting in product delays; inability of retailexsd consumers to obtain credit to finance purchafeur products; decreased consumer
confidence; decreased retail demand, includingratdiys or cancellations; and counterparty faguregatively impacting our treasury
operations.

In addition, the negative worldwide economic cdiodis and market instability makes it increasindifficult for us, our custome
and our suppliers to accurately forecast futuredpecd demand trends, which could cause us to producess products that can increase
inventory carrying costs. Alternatively, this foesting difficulty could cause a shortage of praduor materials used in our products,
could result in an inability to satisfy demand émr products and a loss of market share.
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Our sales growth is dependent upon our ability to implement strategic initiatives and actions taken to increase sales growth may not be
effective.

Our ability to generate sales growth is depehdipon a number of factors, including the follogui
e our ability to continuously improve our productsaffer new and enhanced consumer benefits andr luptédity;
e our recent product launches significantly incredsetisales; however, future product launches maypeas successfl

e the effectiveness of our advertising campaignsathdr marketing programs in building product ananlol awareness, driving traffic
our distribution channels and increasing se

e our ability to continue to successfully execute stategic initiatives
e the level of consumer acceptance of our produaid
e general economic factors that negatively impacsaoarer confidence, disposable income or the avéitlabf consumer financing

Over the last few years, we have had to manag®usiness both through periods of rapid groaviti the uncertain economic
environment. A source of our growth within this &rframe has been through expanding distributiosuofproducts into new stores, principally
furniture and bedding retail stores in the U.S. Pnaducts are currently sold in approximately 7,800iture and bedding retail stores in North
America, and our plan is to increase our total fratien to a total of 9,000 to 10,000 over the loeign. Our products are sold in approximately
5,200 retail stores internationally, out of a tafB,000 that have been identified as approptaigets. Some of these retail stores may undergc
restructurings, experience financial difficultyrealign their affiliations, which could decrease tlumber of stores that carry our products. Our
sales growth will increasingly depend on our apild generate additional sales in our existing ant®in the Retail channel. If we are unabl
increase product sales in our existing retail antoat a sufficient rate overall, our Net salesaghocould slow, which could adversely affect
the price of our common stock.

In addition, we may seek to acquire an additidnaliness or businesses in order to increase salesghy and any acquisition could
disruptive to our ongoing business, create intégmaissues, require additional borrowings or shaseiances, or create other risks for
business.

We operate in the highly competitive mattress and pillow industries, and if we are unable to compete successfully, we may lose customers and
our sales may decline.

Participants in the mattress and pillow industdespete primarily on price, quality, brand nameogmition, product availability ai
product performance. Our premium mattresses compitiiea number of different types of mattress alédives, including standard innerspi
mattresses, viscoelastic mattresses, foam matsiesseerbeds, futons, air beds and othesapported mattresses. These alternative prc
are sold through a variety of channels, includimgpiture and bedding stores, department storess maschants, wholesale clubs, telemark
programs, television infomercials and catalogs.

Our largest competitors have significant finanamarketing and manufacturing resources. They esfi@mng brand name recogniti
and sell their products through broad and welll@istiaed distribution channels. Additionally, a nuenlof our significant competitors offer non-
innerspring mattress and viscoelastic pillow praduany such competition by established manufactuoe new entrants into the market cc
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and operating results. The piliodustry is characterized by a large nun
of competitors, none of which are dominant, but ynafwhich have greater resources than us.
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Because we depend on our significant customers, a decrease or interruption in their business with us would reduce our sales and
profitability.

Our top five customers, collectively, accounteddpproximately 20.0% of our Net sales for the yaated December 31, 2011. M.
of our customer arrangements are by purchase ordate terminable at will at the option of eitharty. We expect that some of our retal
may consolidate, undergo restructurings or reomgdinns, experience financial difficulty, or realigheir affiliations, any of which cou
decrease the number of stores that carry our ptedudncrease the ownership concentration in ¢talrindustry. Some of these retailers |
decide to carry only a limited number of brandsrafttress products, which could affect our abildystll our products to them on favore
terms, if at all. A substantial decrease or intgtinn in business from our significant customeraldaesult in the loss of future business
could reduce our liquidity and profitability.

We are subject to fluctuations in the cost of raw materials, and increasesin these costs would reduce our liquidity and profitability.

The major raw materials that we purchase for pctdo are chemicals and proprietary additives, Whace influenced by oil price
The price and availability of these raw materiaks subject to market conditions affecting supplg demand. We experienced increases i
price of certain raw materials during 2011 and,expect to encounter inflationary costs for raw mate in 2012. To the extent we are uni
to absorb those higher costs, or pass any suclehaists to our customers, our gross profit macguld be negatively affected, which ca
result in a decrease in our liquidity and profitiypi

We are subject to a pending tax proceeding in Denmark, and an adverse decision would reduce our liquidity and profitability.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we receivedrabime tax assessment from the Danish Tax Authaiity respect to the 2001, 2002
and 2003 tax years and an assessment with respiaet 2004 tax year during the third quarter of®@Gind an assessment with respect to the
2005 tax during the second quarter of 2011. Thkeasaessments relate to the royalty paid by off@pfpur-Pedic International’'s U.S.
subsidiaries to a Danish subsidiary and the postt&en by the Danish Tax Authority could applstdbsequent years. The total tax assess
is approximately $103.1 million including interestd penalties. We filed timely complaints with tanish National Tax Tribunal denying the
tax assessments. The National Tax Tribunal fognedreed to place the Danish tax litigation on hm@dding the outcome of a Bilateral
Advance Pricing Agreement (Bilateral APA) betweba United States and the Danish Tax Authority. ilatBral APA involves an agreement
between the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) antbttayer, as well as a negotiated agreement wighoomore foreign competent authorities
under applicable income tax treaties. During thedtquarter of 2008, we filed the Bilateral APAtlwihe IRS and the Danish Tax Authority.
The IRS began analyzing the Bilateral APA in thstfquarter of 2009 and completed their reviewmythe fourth quarter of 2010. The U.S.
and Danish competent authorities met to discus€tmapany’s Bilateral APA during the first quarté1 and fourth quarter 2011. An adverse
decision could reduce or impair our liquidity andfjtability.
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We may be unable to sustain our profitability, which could impair our ability to service our indebtedness and make investmentsin our
business and could adversely affect the market price for our stock.

Our ability to service our indebtedness dependsuwrability to maintain our profitability. We maynbe able to maintain our
profitability on a quarterly or annual basis inurg periods. Further, our profitability will dependon a number of factors, including without
limitation:

e general economic conditions in the markets in whiehsell our products and the impact on consumetgetailers
e the level of competition in the mattress and piliogustry;

e our ability to align our cost structure with saleghe existing economic environme

e our ability to effectively sell our products thrdugur distribution channels in volumes sufficiemttive growth and leverage our cost
structure and advertising spendil

e our ability to reduce cost

e our ability to absorb fluctuations in commaodity t=:

e our ability to maintain efficient, timely and c-effective production and utilization of our manufaiing capacity
e our ability to successfully identify and responcetaerging trends in the mattress and pillow ingystnd

e our ability to maintain public association of ouabd with premium products, including overcoming anpact on our brand caused by
some of our customers seeking to sell our prodatciésdiscount to our recommended pr

Our advertising expenditures may not result in increased sales or generate the levels of product and brand name awareness we desire and we
may not be able to manage our advertising expenditures on a cost-effective basis.

A significant component of our marketing strategyoines the use of direct marketing to generate s&lasire growth and profitabili
will depend in part on the cost and efficiency af advertising expenditures, including our abilitycreate greater awareness of our pros
and brand name and determine the appropriate weaagssage and media mix for future advertisingedjtures.

Our operating results are increasingly subject to fluctuations, which could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

A significant portion of our growth et sales is attributable to growth in sales inMarth American Retail channel, particularly Net
sales to furniture and bedding stores. We belibaedur sales of mattresses and pillows to furaiturd bedding stores are subject to
seasonality inherent in the bedding industry, \siles expected to be generally lower in the seaoddourth quarters and higher in the first
and third quarters, and in Europe, lower in thedthjuarter. Our Net sales may be affected incrgsloy this seasonality, particularly as our
North American Retail sales channel continues tovgrs a percentage of our overall Net sales aral)éeser extent, by seasonality outside
North American segmer

In addition to seasonal fluctuations, the demamaéw premium products can fluctuate significarmthsed on a number of other factors,
including general economic conditions, consumeffidence, the timing of price increases announcedsgr our competitors and promotions
we offer or offered by our competitors. As our aamer base continues to expand across a wider deyptugr it may be comprised of a greater
percentage of middle income consumers. As a resuwltconsumer base may be more susceptible togjesmmnomic factors impacted by
decreased disposable income, consumer confiderspeadability of consumer financing.
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We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in exchange rates, which could affect our results of operations, the costs of our products and
our ability to sell our productsin foreign markets.

Approximately 29.1% of our Net sales were generatedur International segment for the year endeceber 31, 2011. As a
multinational company, we conduct our businesswide variety of currencies and are therefore suthifgmarket risk for changes in foreign
exchange rates. We use foreign exchange forwartlazzis to manage a portion of the exposure toisheof the eventual net cash inflows and
outflows resulting from foreign currency denomirmateansactions between Tempur-Pedic Internatiauadidiaries and their customers and
suppliers, as well as among certain Tempur-Pedénational subsidiaries. The hedging transactinag not succeed in managing our foreign
currency exchange rate risk. See “ITEM 7A. Quatititaand Qualitative Disclosures About Market Riskereign Currency Exposurest Par
I of this report.

Foreign currency exchange rate movements alsoeceedégree of risk by affecting the U.S. dollaueadf sales made and costs incurred
in foreign currencies. We do not enter into heddnansactions to hedge this risk. Consequentiyyeported earnings and financial position
could fluctuate materially as a result of foreigieleange gains or losses. Our outlook for 2012 assunmodest unfavorable currency exchange
rates versus the full year ended December 31, 2Z8duld currency rates change sharply, our resalifd be negatively impacted. See
“ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosurAbout Market Risk—Foreign Currency Exposures” intRof this report.

We are subject to risks from our international operations, such asincreased costs, which could impair our ability to compete and our
profitability.

We currently conduct international operations in 20 wholly-owned subsidiaries and our productssatd in approximately 80
countries. We generated approximately 29.1% ofNmirsales from our International segment duringyter ended December 31, 2011, and
we continue to pursue additional international apputies. Our international operations are subjethe customary risks of operating in an
international environment, including complying wftireign laws and regulations and the potentialdsition of trade or foreign exchange
restrictions, tariffs and other tax increases,tflations in exchange rates, inflation and unstpbliical situations and labor issues.

If we are not able to protect our trade secrets or maintain our trademarks, patents and other intellectual property, we may not be ableto
prevent competitors from developing similar products or from marketing in a manner that capitalizes on our trademarks, and thisloss of a
competitive advantage could decrease our profitability and liquidity.

We rely on trade secrets to protectdsign, technology and function of our TEMPUR® eni@ and our products. To date, we have
not sought U.S. or international patent protecfarour principal product formula and manufacturprgcesses. Accordingly, we may not be
able to prevent others from developing viscoelastiterial and products that are similar to or catitige with our products. Our ability to
compete effectively with other companies also ddpeto a significant extent, on our ability to main the proprietary nature of our owned
licensed intellectual property. We own several pt®n aspects of our products and have patenicapiphs pending on aspects of our
products and manufacturing processes. Howevepriheipal product formula and manufacturing proesser our TEMPUR® material and
our products are not patented and we must maittiase as trade secrets in order to protect thediectual property. We own U.S. and foreign
registered trade names and servicemarks and halieajons for the registration of trade names s@vicemarks pending domestically and
abroad. We also license certain intellectual prigpéghts from third parties.
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Our trademarks are currently registered in the Biff. registered or pending in foreign jurisdictiodswever, those rights could be
circumvented, or violate the proprietary rightsotifers, or we could be prevented from using thechéfllenged. A challenge to our use of our
trademarks could result in a negative ruling regeyour use of our trademarks, their validity ceitrenforceability, or could prove expensive
and time consuming in terms of legal costs and 8pent defending against such a challenge. Anydbsademark protection could result in a
decrease in sales or cause us to spend additiorairdas on marketing, either of which could decreasgdiquidity and profitability. In additiol
if we incur significant costs defending our tradeksathat could also decrease our liquidity andifability. In addition, we may not have the
financial resources necessary to enforce or dedendrademarks. Furthermore, our patents may reigee meaningful protection and patents
may never issue from pending applications. It $®gdossible that others could bring claims of mfement against us, as our principal product
formula and manufacturing processes are not pateatel that any licenses protecting our intelldgiuaperty could be terminated. If we were
unable to maintain the proprietary nature of otellactual property and our significant currenpooposed products, this loss of a competitive
advantage could result in decreased sales or iswieaperating costs, either of which would decreasdiquidity and profitability.

In addition, the laws of certain foreign countreay not protect our intellectual property rightslaonfidential information to the same
extent as the laws of the U.S. or the European tJriibird parties, including competitors, may asg#gllectual property infringement or
invalidity claims against us that could be uphéhtellectual property litigation, which could resui substantial cost to and diversion of effort
by us, may be necessary to protect our trade seorgtroprietary technology, or for us to defendiast claimed infringement of the rights of
others and to determine the scope and validitytleérs’ proprietary rights. We may not prevail in any slitiation, and if we are unsuccess
we may not be able to obtain any necessary licamsesasonable terms or at all.

An increasein our product return rates or an inadequacy in our warranty reserves could reduce our liquidity and profitability.

Part of our North American marketinglauvertising strategy in certain North Americaarmhels focuses on providing up to a 120-day
money back guarantee under which customers masnrétair mattress and obtain a refund of the pwselmice. For the years ended Decer
31, 2011 and 2010, we had approximately $46.7 oniléind $44.6 million in returns for a return rat@pproximately 4.6% and 5.8%,
respectively, of our Net sales in North America.wes expand our sales, our return rates may notirewithin our historical levels. A
downturn in general economic conditions may alsogase our product return rates. An increase umneates could significantly impair our
liquidity and profitability.

We also currently provide our customers with atigdj pro-rata 20-year warranty on mattresses saibirth America and a limited, pro-
rata 15-year warranty on mattresses sold in tregdational segment. However, as we have only beling mattresses in significant quantities
since 1992, and have released new products intrgears, many of which are fairly early in theioguct life cycles. We also provide 2-year to
3-year warranties on pillows.

Because not all of our products have been in ussubgustomers for the full warranty period, weyreh the combination of historical
experience and product testing for the developrakaur estimate for warranty claims. However, ociual level of warranty claims could
prove to be greater than the level of warrantynetawe estimated based on our products’ performdagdag product testing. If our warranty
reserves are not adequate to cover future warddaityis, their inadequacy could have a material esdveffect on our liquidity and profitabilit
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We are wulnerableto interest rate risk with respect to our debt, which could lead to an increase in interest expense.

We are subject to interest rate risk in connectvith the variable rate debt under our credit fagi{Senior Credit Facility). Interest rate
changes could increase the amount of our inteeghpnts and thus, negatively impact our futureiagemand cash flows. We estimate that
annual interest expense on our floating rate iretbiess would increase by $3.4 million for each lif&ftease in interest rates. See “ITEM 7A.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk—Interest Rate Risk” in Part Il of this repo

Our leverage may limit our flexibility and increase our risk of default.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $58&illlon in total Long-term debt outstanding. In ditzh, as of December 31, 2011, our
Stockholders’ Equity was $30.8 million. During 204 repurchased a total of $368.5 million in comrstotk pursuant to stock repurchase
authorizations approved by our Board of Directdve funded the repurchases in part through borrosvingler our Senior Credit Facility,
which increased our leverage. On January 23, 2082Company's Board of Directors terminated theaiaing authority under the July 2011
authorization, as amended in October 2011, ancbappra new share repurchase authorization of $2%6.0 million of the
Company's common stock.

Our degree of leverage could have important coresgzps to our investors, such as:

e limiting our ability to obtain additional financinge may need to fund future working capital, cdptependitures, product developme
acquisitions or other corporate requirements;

e requiring the dedication of a substantial portibar cash flow from operations to the paymentmrfigipal and interest on our debt,
which would reduce the availability of cash flowftmd working capital, capital expenditures, pradievelopment, acquisitions and
other corporate requiremen

In addition, the instruments governing our debttaonfinancial and other restrictive covenants,ahtimit our operating flexibility and
could prevent us from taking advantage of busiogg®rtunities. Our failure to comply with these engants may result in an event of default.
If such event of default is not cured or waived,may suffer adverse effects on our operationsnessi or financial condition, including
acceleration of our debt. For further discussiararding our debt covenants and compliance, seeMITEManagement’s discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of gtiems—Liquidity and capital resources” in Parbilithis report.

Loss of suppliers and disruptionsin the supply of our raw materials could increase our costs of sales and reduce our ability to compete
effectively.

We acquire chemicals and proprietary additives feonumber of suppliers with manufacturing locatiansund the world. If we were
unable to obtain chemicals and proprietary additivem these suppliers, we would have to find regmaent suppliers. Any substitute
arrangements for chemicals and proprietary additimgyht not be on terms as favorable to us. Intaemgiwe continue to outsource the
procurement of certain goods and services, pastiyuinattress and pillow covers and adjustablebzsgs, from suppliers in foreign
countries. If we were no longer able to outsothceugh these suppliers, we could source it elsesylperhaps at a higher cost. In addition, if
one of our major suppliers, or several of our sigpp] declare bankruptcy or otherwise cease opastour supply chain could be materially
disrupted. We maintain relatively small supplié®oar raw materials and outsourced goods at ourufaaturing facilities, and any disruptior
the on-going shipment of supplies to us could noferproduction of our products, which could resulé decrease of our sales or could cause
an increase in our cost of sales, either of whmhlat decrease our liquidity and profitability.
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We rely significantly on information technology and any failure, inadequacy, interruption or security lapse of that technology could harm
our ability to effectively operate our business.

Our ability to effectively manage our business dejsesignificantly on our information systems. Th#ure of our current systems, or
future upgrades, to operate effectively or to irdgg with other systems, or a breach in securithe$e systems could cause reduced efficiency
of our operations, and remediation of any suchufajlproblem or breach could reduce our liquiditd @rofitability.

We produce our products in three manufacturing facilities, and unexpected equipment failures, delaysin deliveries or catastrophic loss
delays may lead to production curtailments or shutdowns.

We manufacture our products at our threeifaast in Aarup, Denmark, Duffield, Virginia and Bdquerque, New Mexico. An
interruption in production capabilities at any lbése plants as a result of equipment failure coagdlt in our inability to produce our products,
which would reduce our sales and earnings for tfeeted period. For example, we produce pillowsdar North American segment only at
Duffield, Virginia facility. An interruption in pibw production capabilities at this plant coulduksn a disruption of pillow distribution to the
market. In addition, we generally deliver our prots only after receiving the order from the custowr the retailer and thus do not hold
significant levels of inventories. In the eventaodisruption in production at any of our manufaictyfacilities, even if only temporary, or if we
experience delays as a result of events that arenldeour control, delivery times could be seveadfected. For example, a third party carrier
could potentially be unable to deliver our produgithin acceptable time periods due to a labokstdr other disturbance in its business. Any
significant delay in deliveries to our customerslddead to increased returns or cancellationscaude us to lose future sales. Any increase in
freight charges could increase our costs of doimgjriess and affect our profitability. We have idivoed new distribution programs to increase
our ability to deliver products on a timely badiat if we fail to deliver products on a timely bgsive may lose sales which could decrease our
liquidity and profitability. Our manufacturing fdities are also subject to the risk of catastropbss due to unanticipated events such as fires,
explosions or violent weather conditions. Desgite flact that we maintain insurance covering theonitgjof these risks, we may in the future
experience material plant shutdowns or periodgdficed production as a result of equipment failde¢gys in deliveries or catastrophic loss.

Theloss of the services of any members of our senior management team could impair our ability to execute our business strategy and as a
result, reduce our sales and profitability.

We depend on the continued servicesiosenior management team. The loss of key peesaonld have a material adverse effect on
our ability to execute our business strategy anduwrfinancial condition and results of operationg do not maintain keperson insurance f
members of our senior management team.

Deterioration in labor relations could disrupt our business operations and increase our costs, which could decrease our liquidity and
profitability.

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately 1f80Qime employees, with approximately 800 in oAmerica, 300 in Denmark
and 700 in the rest of the world. Certain of oup@yees in Denmark are under a government labarucontract, but those in the U.S. are
Any significant increase in our labor costs couddrase our liquidity and profitability and anyeté@ration of employee relations, slowdowns
or work stoppages at any of our locations, whetlugrto union activities, employee turnover or othise, could result in a decrease in our Net
sales or an increase in our costs, either of wbichd decrease our liquidity and profitability.
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We may face exposure to product liability claims, which could reduce our liquidity and profitability and reduce consumer confidencein our
products.

We face an inherent business risk of exposureddyumt liability claims if the use of any of our plects results in personal injury or
property damage. In the event that any of our petedprove to be defective, we may be required d¢alkeredesign or even discontinue those
products. We maintain insurance against produlbtlilia claims, but such coverage may not continube available on terms acceptable to us
or be adequate for liabilities actually incurredséccessful claim brought against us in excessaifable insurance coverage could impair our
liquidity and profitability, and any claim or produrecall that results in significant adverse peibfiagainst us could result in consumers
purchasing fewer of our products, which would afpair our liquidity and profitability.

Regulatory requirements may require costly expenditures and expose us to liability.

Our products and our marketing and gtbieg programs are and will continue to be subjecegulation in the U.S. by various federal,
state and local regulatory authorities, including Federal Trade Commission and the U.S. Food and Bdministration. In addition, other
governments and agencies in other jurisdictionslegg the sale and distribution of our productsm@lance with these regulations may have
an adverse effect on our business. For example&) tBeConsumer Product Safety Commission has adwptes relating to fire retardancy
standards for the mattress industry. We developeduyst modifications that allow us to meet thesedards. Required product modifications
have added cost to our products. Many foreignglict®ons also regulate fire retardancy standamd,@anges to these standards and changes
in our products that require compliance with adaisil standards would raise similar risks.

Our marketing and advertising practices could alstome the subject of proceedings before regulatottyorities or the subject of
claims by other parties. In addition, we are sufdiedederal, state and local laws and regulatrefeging to pollution, environmental protection
and occupational health and safety. We may not leeiinplete compliance with all such requirementldtmes. We have made and will
continue to make capital and other expendituresitoply with environmental and health and safetyirmnents. If a release of hazardous
substances occurs on or from our properties oraaegciated offsite disposal location, or if contaation from prior activities is discovered at
any of our properties, we may be held liable amdaimount of such liability could be material.

Our operations could also be impacted by a numbpemding legislative and regulatory proposalsddrass greenhouse gas emissions
in the U.S. Similarly, certain countries includibgnmark, where our only plant outside the Uniteztéx is located, have adopted the Kyoto
Protocol, and this and other international initie under consideration could affect our intermati@perations. These actions could increase
costs associated with our operations, includingscfus raw materials and transportation. Becatigeuincertain what laws will be enacted, we
cannot predict the potential impact of such law®onfuture consolidated financial condition, réswuf operations or cash flows.

Challengesto our pricing policies could adversely affect our operations.

Our retail pricing policies are subject to antitreegulations in the U.S. and abroad. If antitmesfulators in any jurisdiction in which we
do business initiate investigations into or chajkeour pricing or advertising policies, our effaidsrespond could force us to divert
management resources and we could incur significaamticipated costs. If such an investigation weneesult in a charge that our practices or
policies were in violation of applicable antitrustother laws or regulations, we could be subjedtignificant additional costs of defending s
charges in a variety of venues and, ultimatelthdfre were a finding that we were in violation ofittust or other laws or regulations, there
could be an imposition of fines, and damages fos@es injured, as well as injunctive or other rfelfy requirement that we pay fines or
damages could decrease our liquidity and profitgbénd any investigation or claim that requirgm#icant management attention or cause
to change our business practices could disrupbperations or increase our costs, also resultirgdacrease in our liquidity and profitability.
An antitrust class action suit against us couldlités potential liabilities, substantial costs aheé diversion of our management’s attention and
resources, regardless of the outcome. See ITEMe)dl Proceedings” in Part | of this report.
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Our stock priceislikely to continue to be volatile, your investment could decline in value, and we may incur significant costs from class
action litigation.

The trading price of our common stock is likelyctantinue to be volatile and subject to wide pfloetuations. The trading price

our common stock may fluctuate significantly inpesse to various factors, including but not limited

actual or anticipated variations in our quarteghei@ting results, including those resulting frorassmal variations in our busine

general economic conditions, such as unemployncbanges in short-term and long-term interest ratesfluctuations in both debt and
equity capital markets

introductions or announcements of technologicabyations or new products by us or our competit

disputes or other developments relating to proamnetights, including patents, litigation matteasd our ability to patent, or otherwise
protect, our products and technologi

changes in estimates by securities analysts ofimamcial performance

stock repurchase progran

bankruptcies of any of our major custome

conditions or trends in the premium bedding indysir the mattress industry genera

additions or departures of key personi

announcements by us or our competitors of signifiegquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vees or capital commitment

announcements by our competitors of their quarigplgrating results or announcements by our congpetitf their views on trends
the bedding industry

regulatory developments in the U.S. and abr
economic and political factor

public announcements or filings with the SEC indiggthat significant stockholders, directors diigdrs are selling shares of our
common stock; an

the declaration or suspension of a cash divid
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In addition, the stock market in general has exgmexed significant price and volume fluctuationgd theve often been unrelated or
disproportionate to operating performance. Thesadmarket factors may seriously harm the markeemf our common stock, regardless of
our operating performance.

In the past, following periods of volatility the market price of a compasysecurities, securities class action litigatioa btien bee
instituted. A securities class action suit agairssicould result in potential liabilities, substahttosts, and the diversion of our managensent’
attention and resources, regardless of the outcome.

Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price.

The market price of our common stockldalecline as a result of sales of substantiallartsoof our common stock in the public
market, or the perception that these sales cowddrotn addition, these factors could make it matifécult for us to raise funds through future
offerings of common stock. As of January 27, 2Qh&re were 63.8 million shares of our common stmgktanding. All of our shares of our
common stock are freely transferable without resitm or further registration under the Securiies of 1933, except for certain shares of our
common stock which were purchased by our execufffieers, directors, principal stockholders, andtheaelated parties.

In addition, up to approximately 18.5 million shauef our common stock are reserved for grants uoade2002 Stock Option Plan, our
Amended and Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plaapanded and our 2003 Employee Stock PurchaseAdasf.December 31, 2011,
approximately 4.4 million equity awards are outdiag and 2.9 million are available for future ganthe Company has filed registration
statements with the SEC with respect to these stzare stockholders can sell these shares in tHee poérket upon issuance, subject to
restrictions under the securities laws and anyiealple lock-up agreements.

We have stockholders who presently beneficially omore than 5% of our outstanding capital stockeSat other dispositions of our
shares by these major stockholders may depresstatk price.

Our current directors, officers and their affiliates own a large percentage of our common stock and could limit you from influencing
corporate decisions.

As of January 27, 2012 our executive officers, @oes, and their respective affiliates own, in #ygregate, approximately 4% of our
outstanding common stock on a fully diluted baafter giving effect to the vesting of all unvestgations. These stockholders, as a group, are
able to influence all matters requiring approvaldoy stockholders, including mergers, sales oftastige election of directors, and approval of
other significant corporate transactions, in a neanwith which you may not agree or that may noirbgour best interest. In addition, we have
stockholders who own more than 5% of our outstajpdmmon stock, and as a result, may be able liteinfe matters requiring the approval
of stockholders and the approval of other signific@rporate transactions.

Provisions of Delaware law and our charter documents could delay or prevent an acquisition of us, even if the acquisition would be
beneficial to you.

Provisions of Delaware law and our certificaterafdrporation and by-laws could hamper a third parfcquisition of us, or discourag
third party from attempting to acquire control &f You may not have the opportunity to particigatthese transactions. These provisions
could also limit the price that investors mightwaidling to pay in the future for shares of our commstock.

These provisions include:

e our ability to issue preferred stock with rightsige to those of the common stock without any farttiote or action by the holders of
our common stock

e the requirements that our stockholders provide ackwaotice when nominating our directors; .

e the inability of our stockholders to convene a klmiders’ meeting without the chairperson of tharad the president, or a majority of
the board of directors first calling the meetir
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our products are sold in approximately 80 countaied we have wholly-owned subsidiaries in 22 cadastincluding our wholly-owned
subsidiaries that own our manufacturing faciliie®enmark and the U.S. The following table setshfeaertain information regarding our

principal facilities at December 31, 2011.

Approximate

Square

Name/Location Footage Title Type of Facility
Tempur Production USA, LL(

Duffield, Virginia 540,00( Owned Manufacturing
Tempur Production USA, LLC

Albuquerque, New Mexic 800,00( Leased (until 203& Manufacturing
Dar-Foam ApS

Aarup, Denmar 517,00( Owned Manufacturing
Tempu-Pedic North America, LL(

Lexington, Kentuck 72,00( Leased (until 2012 Office
Tempur Deutschland GmbH

Steinhagen, Germai 121,00( Owned Office and Warehous

In addition to the properties listed above,hage 33 facilities in 13 countries under leasdh whe to ten year terms. The
manufacturing facility in Albuquerque, New Mexicoleased as part of the related industrial revéaomel financing. We have an option to
repurchase the property for one dollar upon tertignaof the lease.

We believe that our existing properties aiigable for the conduct of our business, are adegioatour present needs and will be

adequate to meet our future needs. In additiorh&gan construction of our new corporate headquairedctober 2011, which we expect tc
completed during the fourth quarter of 2012.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Antitrust Action.On January 5, 2007, a purported class action Wes digainst the Company in the United States BisGourt for the
Northern District of Georgia, Rome Division (Jacab§ empu-Pedic International, Inc. and TempRedic North America, Inc., or the Antitr
Action). The Antitrust Action alleges violation§ federal antitrust law arising from the pricing Témpur-Pedic mattress products by Tempur-
Pedic North America and certain distributors. ®o#on alleges a class of all purchasers of Tenfmaic mattresses in the United States since
January 5, 2003, and seeks damages and injunetieé Count Two of the complaint was dismissedHmy court on June 25, 2007, based on a
motion filed by the Company. Following a decisigatied by the United States Supreme Coureegin Creative Leather Prods., Inc. v. PSKS,
Inc.on June 28, 2007, the Company filed a motion toidis the remaining two counts of the Antitrust Aoton July 10, 2007. On December
11, 2007, that motion was granted and, as a rgsdfment was entered in favor of the Company aedtaintiffs’ complaint was dismissed
with prejudice. On December 21, 2007, the plaistiffied a “Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment,” whievas fully briefed. On May 1, 2008,
that motion was denied. Jacobs appealed the diahv§their claims, and the parties argued thesaplpefore the United States Circuit Court
for the Eleventh Circuit on December 11, 2008. Toairt rendered an opinion favorable to the Companipecember 2, 2010, affirming the
trial court’s refusal to allow Jacobs to alter arend its pleadings and dismissing its claims. Badms subsequently petitioned the 11th Circuit
Court of Appeals for an “en banc” review of theethijudge paned’ruling. The Company continues to strongly beithat the Antitrust Actio
lacks merit, and intends to defend against thendaiigorously. Based on the findings of the coordate and an assessment of the Company’s
meritorious defenses, the Company believes thistré@mote that it will incur a loss with respecthés matter. However, due to the inherent
uncertainties of litigation, the Company cannotdicethe outcome of the Antitrust Action at thisi&, and can give no assurance that these
claims will not have a material adverse affectlw €ompany'’s financial position or results of opierss.

New York Attorney Generdh December 2008, the Office of the Attorney Gehefdhe State of New York, Antitrust Bureau (OAG)
requested that the Company consider discontinggngriilateral retail price policy (UPPL) in the &t&f New York, and informed the Comp:
that it may bring an enforcement action againstGhepany under New York law if the Company chosetoao so. On March 29, 2010, the
Office of the Attorney General filed suit in New N«ostate court against the Company with respetitisomatter. The complaint does not ch:
the Company with any violation of state or fedenatitrust law; instead it claims the Company vietht 1975 New York state law which
declares certain contractual provisions to be wreefble and not actionable at law and seeks, awitheg things, a permanent injunction
prohibiting the Company’s UPPL as well as unspediums for restitution and disgorgement of profitee Company responded to the
complaint and also filed motions to dismiss andhtitain discovery. On September 28, 2010, the dwatd various motions filed by the parties
and took them under advisement. On January 14,,26& Tourt denied the OAG's petition in full ancgted the Company’s motion to
dismiss. The OAG filed an appeal on February 22,120 he Company believes that its UPPL compliek sfiate and federal law and intend
continue to vigorously defend it in this matter. dlaim for damages has been received by the Com@ased on the findings of the court to
date and an assessment of the Comgamgritorious defenses, the Company believes tigtémote that it will incur a loss with respéethis
matter. However, due to the inherent uncertairdfdgigation, the Company cannot predict the omteoof this matter at this time, and can give
no assurance that these claims will not have anmabtglverse affect on the Company’s financial posior results of operations.

The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its businéee Company believes that the

outcome of all such pending legal proceedings énatpgregate will not have a material adverse affiedts business, financial condition,
liquidity, or operating results.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Registrant's Common Equity
Our sole class of common equity is our $0.01 péuerzaommon stock, which trades on the New York Stexchange (NYSE) under the
symbol “TPX.” Trading of our common stock commencedthe NYSE on December 18, 2003. Prior to tmagetithere was no public trading
market for our common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and/Isales prices per common share, at closing, o€oommon stock as reported by the
NYSE and cash dividends paid per common sharénéfiscal periods indicate

Price Range
Cash Dividenc
Per Common
High Low Share

Fiscal 2010
First Quarte $ 311t $ 24.4: $ —
Second Quarte 35.7¢ 29.6¢ —
Third Quartel 32.7¢ 26.01 —
Fourth Quarte 40.6: 26.8¢ —
Fiscal 2011
First Quarte $ 50.7¢ $ 39.4( $ —
Second Quarte 67.97 50.9¢ —
Third Quartel 72.2¢ 51.3: —
Fourth Quarte 69.8: 48.6¢ —

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximat@y shareholders of record of our common stock.
Dividends

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2002010. The decision to pay a dividend in futueeigds is reviewed by our Board of
Directors on a periodic basis.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth equity compdimwaplan information as of December 31, 2011:

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
Number of future
securities to issuance
be issued Weighted- under equity
upon average compensatior
exercise of exercise price plans
outstanding of outstanding  (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants and warrants and  reflected in
Plan category rights rights column (a))
(@) (b) (€)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrgt
2002 Stock Option Plan (: 8,86¢ $ 2.8¢ —
2003 Equity Incentive Plan (: 4,436,47! 16.8¢ 2,802,42
2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan — — 141,59¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —
Total 4,445,34. $ 16.8¢ 2,944,02

(1) In December 2003, our Board of Directors adoptegsalution that prohibited further grants under2882 Stock Option Plai

(2) The number of securities to be issued upon exeodisatstanding stock options, warrants and rigggsed under the 2003 Equity Incen
Plan includes 185,296 of restricted stock units deférred stock units. Additionally, this numbeclirdes 853,404 performance restricted

stock units which reflects a maximum payout ofderds granted. These restricted, deferred andnoeathce restricted stock units are
excluded from the weighted average exercise patautation above

(3) Shares under the 2003 Employee Stock Purchaseaibars eligible employees to purchase our commoaoksannually over the course
two semi-annual offering periods at a price of esslthan 85% of the price per share of our comrtaak sThis plan is an open market
purchase plan and does not have a dilutive eftdtgctive February 1, 2010, we suspended offerintger the ESPP indefinitel

See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentaformation regarding the material featurega€h of the above plans.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During 2011, we purchased 6.5 million shares ofammmon stock for a total cost of $368.5 milliomguant to authorizations made by
our Board of Directors. On January 23, 2012, ouardmf Directors terminated the remaining authauitgler the July 2011 authorization, as
amended in October 2011, and approved a new sipmechase authorization of up to $250.0 milliomof common stock. Share repurchases
under this authorization may be made through oparket transactions, negotiated purchases or otkepat times and in such amounts as
management and a committee of the Board deem ajgueyghese repurchases may be funded by operedisty flows and/or borrowings uni
our Senior Credit Facility. This share repurchasgmm may be limited, suspended or terminatedhatiene without notice.
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The following table sets forth purchases af @mmon stock for the three months ended DeceBihe2011:
(d) Maximum number of

shares (or approximate
(c) Total number of dollar value) of shares

shares purchased ¢ that may yet be
part of publicly purchased under the
(a) Total number (b) Average Price announced plans o plans or programs (in
Period of sharepurchased Paid per Share programs millions)
October 1, 201~ October 31, 201 — — — —
November 1, 201- November 30, 201 2,097,28. $ 51.21 2,097,28 $ 80.C
December 1, 2011 — December 31, 2011 162,97! 51.17 162,97! 71.t
Total 2,260,25! 2,260,25!

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed to be “soliciting matetiat to be “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall éufohmation be incorporated by reference into amtufe filing under the Securities Act of
1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each amnded, except to the extent that the Company g@lgifincorporates it by reference into
such filing.

The following table compares cumulative sharehotdarrns for the Company over the last five yearthe Standard & Poor’'s (S&P)
500 Stock Composite Index, and a peer group. The 580 Composite Index is a capitalization weighiegx of 500 stocks intended to be a
representative sample of leading companies in hgpididustries within the U.S. economy, and are ehder market size, liquidity and industry
group representation. We believe the peer grougebtlaeflects our business and, as a result, pesuideaningful comparison of stock
performance.

The peer issuers included in this graph are s#i fuglow:

Callaway Golf Compan Herman Miller Inc. Steelcase Inc

Coach, Inc Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, In Tempu-Pedic International Inc
Columbia Sportswear Compa Nautilus, Inc. Tiffany & Co.

Ethan Allen Interiors Inc Ralph Lauren Cory Tupperware Brands Cor
Fossil, Inc. Quiksilver, Inc.

Harman International Industries Ir Select Comfort Cory

The comparison for each of the periods assuhasp100 was invested on December 31, 2006 icammon stock, the stocks
included in the S&P 500 Composite Index and theksténcluded in each peer group index and thatigilends were reinvested. The stock
performance shown on the graph below is not nedgssaicative of future price performance.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®

Among Tempur-Pedic International, Inc., the S&P 800 Index, and a Peer Group

$300 -

$250

$200

$150
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$50

${. i i i i i
12106 1207 1208 12109 1210 1211

—&— Tempur-Pedic Intemational, Inc. ——A—-5&P 500 -==-gr--- Pesel Group

*F100invested on 1203106 in stockar index, including reinvegment of dividends.
Fizcal year ending December 31.

Copytight® 2012 58P, adivizionof The MoGrawHill Companiesine Al rightsreserved.

12/2006 12/2007 12/2008 12/2009 12/2010 12/2011
Tempu-Pedic International, In $ 100.0¢ $ 128.3¢ $ 35.7t $ 119.1¢ $ 201.9¢ $ 264.8¢
S&P 500 100.0( 105.4¢ 66.4¢ 84.0¢ 96.71 98.7¢
Peer Groug 100.0( 86.5¢ 45.97 81.4: 122.2¢ 134.3:
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected histakiconsolidated financial and operating datatiergeriods indicated. We have derived
our statements of income and balance sheet dataaasl for the years ended December 31, 2011, Zd®, 2008 and 2007 from our audited
financial statements. Our financial statementsfd®egcember 31, 2011 and 2010 and for each of tteztyears in the period ended December
31, 2011 are included in ITEM 15, “Exhibits and &icial Statement Schedules” in Part IV of this repo

(In thousands, except par share amounts)

Statement of Income Data: 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Net sale! $ 1,417,93! $ 1,105,42 $ 831,15t $ 927,81 $ 1,106,72
Cost of sales 674,84¢ 549,99: 437,41 526,86: 571,891
Gross profi 743,09( 555,42 393,74 400,95 534,82!
Operating expens: 402,55¢ 309,52! 248,79 267,009. 290,71.
Operating incom 340,53: 245,90:. 144,94! 133,86: 244,11.
Interest expense, r (11,949 (14,50 (17,349 (25,129 (30,489
Other (expense) income, net (192) (53€) 441 (1,319 (756
Income before income tax 328,39: 230,86! 128,03 107,42. 212,87
Income tax provision 108,78: 73,72( 43,04« 48,55¢ 71,41}
Net income $ 219,60¢ $ 157,14' $ 84,99. $ 58,86¢ $ 141,45!

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period
Cash and cash equivale $ 111,36 $ 53,62! $ 14,04: $ 15,38! $ 33,31!
Total Asset: 828,64( 716,00: 643,37 646,53 806,43.
Total deb 585,00( 407,00( 297,471 419,34 602,04
Total Stockholders' Equi 30,79: 126,03: 172,29: 72,44 48,13t

Other Financial and Operating Data:
Dividends per common she $ — $ — $ — $ 02, % 0.3(
Depreciation and amortizati(®) 50,98¢ 43,96¢ 40,21 40,79° 40,14:
Net cash provided by operating activi 248,70t 184,12: 134,98t 198,39: 126,36:
Net cash used by investing activit (36,07¢) (37,51) (14,309 (5,369 (22,87))
Net cash used by financing activit (148,870) (106,371 (118,72) (200,15 (87,647
Basic earnings per common sh 3.27 2.2¢ 1.1z 0.7¢ 1.77
Diluted earnings per common sh 3.1¢ 2.1¢ 1.12 0.7¢ 1.7¢
Capital expenditure 29,46¢ 18,14: 14,30: 10,49: 16,14¢

@ Includes $16.7 million, $11.6 million, $8.8 millip$8.0 million, and $6.7 million in non-cash stduksed compensation expense related to
restricted stock units, performance restrictedlstouts, deferred stock units and stock option20dal1, 2010, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should belii@aconjunction with “ITEM 6. Selected Financiahfa” in Part | of this report and
the audited consolidated financial statements acmbmpanying notes thereto included elsewhere gr#port. Unless otherwise noted, all of
the financial information in this report is considited financial information for the Company. Theaarddooking statements in this discuss
regarding the mattress and pillow industries, oypectations regarding our future performance, lidjty and capital resources and other non-
historical statements in this discussion are sutjeaumerous risks and uncertainties. See “Spedak Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” and “ITEM 1A. Risk Factors” in Part f this report. Our actual results may differ madly from those contained in any forward-
looking statements.

In this discussion and analysis, we discuss anthexfhe consolidated financial condition and resof operations for Tempur-Pedic
International for the years ended December 31, 28010 and 2009 including the following topics:

e An overview of our business and strate

Our Net sales and costs in the periods presenteelhas changes between peric

e Discussion of new initiatives that may affect outufre results of operations and financial condit

Expected future expenditures for capital projecis sources of liquidity for future operations; ¢
e The effect of the foregoing on our overall finahgarformance and condition, as well as factors ¢oald affect our future performan
Business Overview

GeneralWe are the leading manufacturer, marketer andildigtr of premium mattresses and pillows, whichsg# in
approximately 80 countries under the TEMPUR® anohpier-Pedic® brands. We believe our premium mattessd pillows are more
comfortable than standard bedding products becawisproprietary pressure-relieving TEMPUR® mateisaiemperature sensitive, has a high
density and therapeutically conforms to the body.

We sell our premium mattresses and pillowsubh four distribution channels in each operatingifiess segment: Retail (furniture
and bedding, non-spring and department storesgcb{direct response, internet and company-owree st Healthcare (hospitals, nursing
homes, healthcare professionals and medical reggikend Third party distributors in countries wégre do not sell directly through our own
subsidiaries.

In our International segment certain of our sulasids sell directly through company-owned store®rRo 2011, these sales have not
been material and were reported through our Reftaihnel. In 2011, and consistent with our growttiatives, we are reporting company-
owned stores in the International segment withen@firect channel. Prior period amounts have beelassified to conform to the 2011
presentation of Net sales, by channel and by segmbase changes do not impact previously repdrieanational segment Net sales totals.

Business SegmenW/e have two reportable business segments: Northridenand International. These reportable segmentsteategic
business units that are managed separately baske &imdamental differences in their geographiée North American operating segment
consists of two U.S. manufacturing facilities angl Blorth American distribution subsidiaries. Théehmational segment consists of our
manufacturing facility in Denmark, whose customardude all of our distribution subsidiaries anddhparty distributors outside the North
American operating segment. We evaluate segmefdrpgance based on Net sales and Operating income.

On April 1, 2010, we purchased our Third partyritisttor in Canada. Accordingly, Net sales in then&@iian market are reported in the

appropriate channels within the North American segimAs Canada represented essentially all salesgh the North American Third party
channel, we no longer report Third party saledis segment.
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For a further discussion of factors that could intpgperating results, including the current ecoremvironment and the steps we are
taking to address this environment, see the seetititied “Factors That May Affect Future Perforrnahincluded within this section and "Ri
Factors" in ITEM 1A, which are incorporated herbinreference.
Strategy

Our goal is to become the world's favorite mattrasd pillow brand. In order to achieve this longviggoal while managing through the
current economic environment, we expect to contioysursue certain key strategic goals using ttetee strategies discussed below.

e Make sure everyone knows that they wcsleep better on a Temj-Pedic® mattres< we plan to continue to invest in our global br
awareness through advertising campaigns that fuasociate our brand name with overall sleep aachinm quality products

e Make sure there is a Tem|-Pedic® bed and pillow that appeals to every~ we plan to continue to maintain our focus on prem
mattresses and pillows and regularly introduce pevducts

e Make sure that Temp-Pedic® products are available to everyo— we plan to expand our points of distribution anel ¢ffectivenes
of our distribution channel:

e Make sure that Temp-Pedic® bedding products continue to deliver the best s we plan to continue to invest in product rese:
and developmen

In pursuing these strategic goals, we expect tdirmoa to optimize our cost structure in order talde these marketing and product
development investments.

Results of Operations
Key financial highlights for the year ended Decemik 2011 include:
e Earnings per common share (EPS) were $3.18 paedikhare compared to $2.16 for the full year 2
e Net sales increased to $1.4 billion compared ta $illion for the full year 201C
e Our Gross Profit margin was 52.4% compared to 5G@%he year ended December 31, 2(
e Our Operating income margin was 24.0% compare@12% for the year ended December 31, 2I

e During the year ended December 31, 2011, we geste$48.7 million of operating cash flow compare&184.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 201

e During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repsech6.5 million shares of our common stock faital tost of $368.5 millior
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The following table sets forth the various gaments of our Consolidated Statements of Income expresses each component as a
percentage of Net sales:

(In thousands, except earnings per share) Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009
Net sales $ 1,417,93 100.%0 $ 1,105,442 100.% $ 831,15¢ 100.(%
Cost of sales 674,84 47.€ 549,99: 49.¢ 437,41 52.¢
Gross Profi 743,09( 52. 555,42 50.2 393,74 47.4
Selling and marketing expens 276,87( 19.5 199,72: 18.1 153,44( 18.t
General, administrative and ott 125,68 8.S 109,80: 9.¢ 95,35] 11.5
Operating incom: 340,53: 24.C 245,90:. 22.2 144,94! 17.4
Interest expense, n (11,949 (0.) (14,50 2.3 (17,349 (2.2
Other (expense) income, net (192 — (536) — 441 0.1
Income before income tax 328,39: 23.2 230,86! 20.¢ 128,03 15.4
Income tax provision 108,78 7.7 73,72( 6.7 43,04« 5.2
Net income $ 219,60¢ 155% $ 157,14! 14.2% $ 84,99: 10.2%
Earnings per common sha
Diluted $ 3.1¢ $ 2.1€ $ 1.12
Weighted average common shares outstan
Diluted 69,14¢ 72,79. 76,04¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Ered December 31, 2010
A summary of Net sales, by channel and by segnesét forth below:
CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Retail $ 1,245,59: $ 953,19: $ 917,58( $ 694,72 $ 328,01: $ 258,46¢
Direct 100,08t 73,68’ 75,98" 59,66¢ 24,10: 14,01¢
Healthcare 34,06( 35,16¢ 11,16¢ 12,29( 22,89. 22,87¢
Third party 38,19¢ 43,37 — 5,34: 38,19¢ 38,03¢

$ 1,417,93" $ 1,105,42. $ 1,004,73" $ 772,02t $ 413,20: $ 333,39

A summary of Net sales, by product and by segniesgt forth below:

CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Mattresse: $ 944,34¢ $ 735,58t $ 693,40° $ 539,19¢ $ 250,94 $ 196,38’
Pillows 151,68t¢ 130,56 75,56¢ 65,72¢ 76,11¢ 64,83¢
Other 321,90: 239,27: 235,75¢ 167,09¢ 86,14 72,17.

$ 1,417,93! $ 1,105,42. $ 1,004,73! $ 772,02¢ $ 413,207 $ 333,39
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Net sales. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 201&dBed to $1.4 billion from $1.1 billion, an increas $312.5 million, ¢
28.3%. We believe our revenues have continued ggimiomentum primarily as a result of investmentslena marketing, the ongoing succ
of new product introductions and expanding poiritdistribution. Consolidated Mattress sales inceela$208.8 million, or 28.4%, comparet
the full year 2010. The increase in Mattress satesirred primarily in our Retail channel with Netl&s increasing to $1.2 billion from $95
million in the same period in 2010, an increas&282.4 million, or 30.7%. Consolidated Pillow salesreased approximately $21.1 million
16.2% compared to the year ended December 31, ZDdfsolidated Other, which primarily includes atiilde bed bases and foundati
increased $82.6 million, or 34.5%. Many of our &®its and Other products are sold with mattress pseh Therefore, when Mattress <
increase, Pillows and Other products are also inegad®irect sales increased $26.4 million, or 35.8¥%e principal factors that impacted
sales for each segment are discussed below, ie$pective segment discussion.

North AmericaNorth American Net sales for the year ended Decei®@bge2011 increased to $1.0 billion from $772.0ion for the
same period in 2010, an increase of $232.7 millawrg0.1%. Our North American Retail channel cdnttéd $917.6 million in Net sales for 1
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, for an aseref $222.9 million, or 32.1%. The TEMPUR-Clouad@lection continues to be well
received by retailers and consumers. This latestggion of proprietary TEMPUR® material was deyeld for consumers who want a soft
sleep surface with the underlying support provibdg& Tempur-Pedic mattress. In the second quai@®1dl, we introduced the TEMPUR-
Contour ® collection of mattresses that replacedTEMPUR® collection for those consumers who préfe traditional TEMPUR® feel.
Additionally, we believe that our continued adv&irtg investments have had a positive impact orpediormance. As a result, North Americ
Mattress sales increased $154.2 million, or 28 ®%r the same period in 2010, driven by the in@éa®ur Retail channel. Net sales in the
Direct channel increased by $16.3 million, or 27.3%e believe increased sales in the Direct chaarged result of our focus on building brand
awareness and encouraging consumers to visit dositeehrough our advertisements. The Third Pargnoel Net Sales decrease is
attributable to our April 1, 2010 acquisition ofrdhird-party distributor in Canada. Other Net satecreased $68.7 million, or 41.1%,
compared to the same period in 2010. Many of ohe©products are sold with mattress purchases eldrer, when Mattress sales increase,
Other products are also impacted. Additionally,h@ge emphasized adjustable bed bases and areenqieg improved attach rates, which are
sold at a higher price point than traditional foations.

International.International Net sales for the year ended Decer@be?011 increased to $413.2 million from $333illion for the same
period in 2010, an increase of $79.8 million, 0or9%28. On a constant currency basis, our Internakiselas increased approximately 15.7%.
International Retail channel increased $69.5 mmillior 26.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2@idrnational Retail increased primarily
due to the introduction of the TEMPUR-Cloud ® , aeliwe believe appeals to a different group of corexs, in our International markets.
Additionally, Retail incresed due to expanding peiof distribution, investments in our brand awassnand growth in key customers. As a
result, International Mattress sales in 2011 ineeeab54.6 million, or 27.8%, compared to 20100Rilkales in 2011 increased $11.3 millior
17.4%, as compared to 2010. Other product Net §adesased $14.0 million, or 19.4%, as comparezZDtt0. Many of our Pillows and Other
products are sold with mattress purchases. Thergfdren Mattress sales increase, Pillows and Qttoglucts are also impacted.

Gross profit. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 20tfeased to $743.1 million from $555.4 million fhe same period
in 2010, an increase of $187.7 million, or 33.8%0<$3 profit margin for the year ended Decembe2811 was 52.4%, as compared to 50.2%
in the same period of 2010. Our Gross profit maigimpacted by, among other factors, geographichmtween segments. Additionally, our
gross profit margin includes a royalty paid by Merth American segment to our International segnbased on production volume, which has
the effect of lowering the North American segmengigorted Gross profit margin, and increasing tiierhational segment’s reported Gross
profit margin. Costs associated with Net salegegerded in Cost of sales. Costs of sales incltliesosts of receiving, producing, inspecting,
warehousing, insuring, and shipping goods durimgptbriod, as well as depreciation and amortizatfdong-lived assets used in these
processes. The principal factors that impacted €posfit margin during the year are identified atistussed below in the respective segment
discussions.
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North AmericaNorth American Gross profit for the year ended Daloer 31, 2011 increased to $499.8 million from $358illion for
the same period in 2010, an increase of $141.50mjlbr 39.5%. The Gross profit margin in our NofAttlmerican segment was 49.7% and
46.4% for the year ended December 31, 2011 and, 284Pectively. Improvements in our North Ameri€aross profit margin were primarily
driven by our productivity programs, which genedaitaproved efficiencies in manufacturing and dmition, favorable mix and fixed cost
leverage related to higher volumes. These factere \partially offset by higher commodity costs 8odr model discounts related to new
product launches. Our North American Cost of saleseased to $504.9 million for the year ended Demer 31, 2011 as compared to $413.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2010, aneiase of $91.2 million, or 22.0%.

International.International Gross profit for the year ended Delsen81, 2011 increased to $243.3 million from $197illion for the
same period in 2010, an increase of $46.2 millwrg3.4%. The Gross profit margin in our Internatibsegment was 58.9% and 59.1% for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respgctiai the year ended December 31, 2011, the dezinaur International Gross prc
margin was primarily driven by higher commodity tand strategic investments, including an inforomatechnology upgrade at our
manufacturing facility in Denmark during the thiydarter of 2011 and floor model discounts relatedew product launches. During the last
six months of the year ended December 31, 201Experienced increased demand for our new produaitshwin combination with tempora
productivity issues arising from the informatiocheology upgrade, resulted in decreased invenewgi$. As a result, we shipped product f
North America thereby incurring incremental freiglsts. These factors were partially offset by iowed efficiencies in manufacturin
favorable mix and fixed cost leverage related ghhi production volumes. Our International Costalés for the year ended December 31,
2011 increased to $169.9 million, as compared 86l million for the year ended December 31, 2@t0increase of $33.6 million, or 24.7%.

Selling and marketing expenses. Selling and marketing expenses include advertiamtymedia production associated with our Direct
channel, other marketing materials such as catalivgshures, videos, product samples, direct customnailings and point of purchase
materials, and sales force compensation. We atdoda in Selling and marketing expense certain pesduct development costs, including
market research and new product testing. Sellimgnaarketing expenses increased to $276.9 milliothfe year ended December 31, 2011 as
compared to $199.7 million for the year ended Ddmem31, 2010, an increase of $77.1 million, or 38.6elling and marketing expenses as a
percentage of Net sales increased to 19.5% in 2@ipared to 18.1% for 2010. Our advertising expdasthe year ended December 31,
2011 was $148.8 million, or 10.5% of Net sales, pared to $96.6 million, or 8.7%, for the same ii®2010, an increase of $52.2 million,
or 54.0%. Our objective is to align advertising expes with our sales expectations. During 201 1sistamt with our strategy, we made
additional investments in advertising to increassntl awareness to drive future growth in certan®erth American and International
markets. All other selling and marketing expensesdased $24.9 million, or 24.2%, which was dritsgrour increase in Net sales. All other
selling and marketing expenses as a percentagetadies were approximately 9.0% and 9.3% for gdsgsyended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

General, administrative and other expenses. General, administrative and other expenses inalugigagement salaries, information
technology, professional fees, depreciation ofifure and fixtures, leasehold improvements and adempequipment, expenses for
administrative functions, and research and devetopiroosts. General, administrative and other exgseas a percentage of Net sales was 8.9%
for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compar@®% for the same period in 2010. General, adtnatise and other expenses increase
$125.7 million for the year ended December 31, 284 tompared to $109.8 million for the year endeddmnber 31, 2010, an increase of $
million, or 14.5%. The increase in General, adntiatsve and other expenses are primarily a refuttaeased salaries and associated expt
of $11.1 million and fees associated with finangimggrams in our Direct sales channel of $2.3 milliboth of which were driven by our
strong operating performance. In addition, incretaeénvestments in information technology of $4.Blion also contributed to this increase.
The effects of these items have been partiallyedty decreased legal and professional expensgé simillion, driven by costs incurred in
2010 relating to the acquisition of our third padigtributor in Canada and strategic research assudiesearch and development expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2011 were $9.9 mitiionpared to $7.4 million for the same period in@Mn increase of $2.5 million, or
33.6%. Consistent with our strategy, we continumvest in research and development in order tadawg our existing product line and
continue to introduce new and differentiated prasluc
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I nterest expense, net. Interest expense, net includes the interest cestscated with our borrowings and the amortizatibdeferred
financing costs related to those borrowings. Irgeespense, net, decreased to $11.9 million foyé&ae ended December 31, 2011 as comparec
to $14.5 million for the year ended December 31L,(2@& decrease of $2.6 million, or 17.6%. The dex#en interest expense is primarily
attributable to a decrease in the portion of thegeulying debt subject to our interest rate swapgchviexpired on May 31, 2011, offset by an
increase in debt outstanding. The interest rateusrvariable rate debt was lower than the fixed rdtthe interest rate swap.

On August 8, 2011, we entered into a new four-ygarest rate swap agreement effective Decembe2(®0], to manage interest costs
and the risk associated with changing interessrassociated with a portion of the borrowings @untding under our Senior Credit Facility.
Under this swap, we pay at a fixed rate and regg@yenents at a variable rate. The swap effectifieés the floating London Inter-bank
Offering Rate (LIBOR) based interest rate to 1.25%$250.0 million of the outstanding balance aBetember 31, 2011 under the Senior
Credit Facility, with the outstanding balance subje the swap expiring on December 30, 2015.

I ncome before income taxes. Income before income taxes for the year ended Deeefil, 2011 increased to $328.4 million from $2
million for the same period in 2010, an increas&®7.5 million, or 42.2%. North America Income befincome taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2011 increased to $224.6 million f&187.7 million for the same period in 2010, an &&se of $86.9 million, or 63.1%.
International Income before income taxes for tharynded December 31, 2011 increased to $103.Bmitlbm $93.2 million for the same
period in 2010, an increase of $10.6 million, or4%4. The increase in income before income taxesawvasult of the items discussed above.

Income tax provision. Income tax provision includes income taxes assediatith taxes currently payable and deferred taxed,

includes the impact of net operating losses forageof our foreign operations. Our effective taxerwas 33.1% and 31.9% for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The aser@rimarily relates to higher growth in the Urfarket versus other markets.
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared with Year Ered December 31, 2009

A summary of Net sales, by channel and by segnis set forth below:

CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
(in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Retail $ 953,19: $ 699,00¢ $ 694,72! $ 459,67¢ $ 258,46t $ 239,33(
Direct 73,68 52,76 59,66¢ 43,28:¢ 14,01¢ 9,48(
Healthcare 35,16¢ 36,15: 12,29( 11,02 22,87¢ 25,12¢
Third party 43,377 43,23 5,34: 11,33¢ 38,03 31,89

$ 1,105,42. $ 831,15¢ $ 772,02¢ $ 525,32: $ 333,39 $ 305,83.

A summary of Net sales, by product and by s=gnis set forth below:

CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Mattresse: $ 735,58t $ 549,93 $ 539,19¢ $ 366,92! $ 196,38 $ 183,01:
Pillows 130,56 107,53¢ 65,72¢ 48,81 64,83t 58,72t
Other 239,27: 173,68( 167,09¢ 109,58! 72,17: 64,09¢

$ 1,105,42. $ 831,15¢ $ 772,02¢ $ 525,32: $ 333,39 $ 305,83.

Net sales. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2016ased to $1.1 billion from $831.2 million, an irese of $274.3 million, «
33.0%. In 2009, our industry was affected by artalsle macroeconomic environment which had an advierpact on our Net sales. Howe
during 2010, we experienced a significant improvetria Net sales. We believe our revenues gained entum primarily as a result
investments made in marketing, research and devanpand new product introductions. We were wetlifimned to make these investme
because we maintained our financial flexibility idigrthe economic downturn. Consolidated Mattre$sssiacreased $185.6 million, or 33.¢
compared to the full year 2009. The increase intidss$ sales occurred primarily in our Retail chanvigh Net Sales increasing to $95
million from $699.0 million in the same period i@, an increase of $254.1 million, or 36.3%. Cdidated Pillow sales increas
approximately $23.0 million, or 21.4% compared ke twelve months ended December 31, 2009. Consetid®ther, which includ
adjustable bed bases, foundations and other rghatetlicts, increased $65.6 million, or 37.8%. Mahgur Pillows and Other products are ¢
with mattress purchases. Therefore, when Mattraks sncrease, Pillows and Other products are iatpacted. The principal factors t
impacted Net sales for each segment are discusded,lin the respective segment discussion.

North AmericaNorth American Net sales for the year ended Dece®bge2010 increased to $772.0 million from $52%iBion for the
same period in 2009, an increase of $246.7 millaw7.0%. Our North American Retail channel cdnttéd $694.7 million in Net sales for 1
twelve months ended December 31, 2010, for an aseref $235.0 million, or 51.1%. The introductidroar new product line, the TEMPUR-
Cloud ® collection, was well received by retailared consumers. This latest generation of propsiei&MPUR® material was developed for
consumers who want a soft sleep surface with tldenlying support provided by a Tempur-Pedic mastr@ring 2009, we launched the first
product in the collection, the TEMPUR-Cloud Supre@neln January 2010, we launched the second nsattrethis line, the TEMPUR-Cloud
® , and during the third quarter of 2010 we introgd the TEMPUR-Cloud Luxe ® . The TEMPUR-Cloud @ection has been extremely
successful, and by appealing to a different grdugasumers, has greatly increased our target rhariceaccordingly was a significant driver
of our Net sales and market share growth in 20Halitfonally, we believe that our “Ask Me” ™dvertising campaign has had a positive i
on our performance. As a result, North Americanthas sales increased $172.3 million, or 47.0%t theesame period in 2009, driven by the
increase in our Retail channel. Net sales in theddichannel increased by $16.4 million, or 37.9%&. believe increased sales in the Direct
channel are a result of our focus on building brawdreness and encouraging consumers to visit ebsite through our advertisements. The
Third Party channel Net Sales decrease was atibteito our April 1, 2010 acquisition of our thipdrty distributor in Canada. Pillow sales
increased $16.9 million, or 34.6%, over the sam@@den 2009. Other Net sales increased $57.5anillor 52.5%, compared to the same
period in 2009. Many of our Pillows and Other proiduare sold with mattress purchases. Thereforenwhattress sales increase, Pillows and
Other products are also impacted. Additionally,hage emphasized and experienced improved attaeh oatadjustable bed bases which are
sold at a higher price point than traditional foations.
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International.International Net sales for the year ended Decer@be?010 increased to $333.4 million from $305iBion for the same
period in 2009, an increase of $27.6 million, d@%. On a constant currency basis, our Internatisalals increased approximately 10.9%. We
experienced some stabilization of the global ecdn@owdown in our international markets, which mefed Net sales in 2009. Additionally,
we added new key customers in certain internatioraakets. The International Retail channel incrd&&¥9.1 million, or 8.0%, for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010. International Retaeased primarily because of growing our dittion and from the success of the
Sensation mattress. Third party Net sales incref8eldmillion, or 19.3%. The primary factor for tinerease in Third party sales was relate
improved macroeconomic environments in our sigaificThird party regions in our International segm&ur introduction of the Sensation
mattress line in the International segment has besghaccepted by retailers and consumers. Asdtrdsternational Mattress sales in 2010
increased $13.4 million, or 7.3%, compared to 2@0%ow sales in 2010 increased $6.1 million, o426, as compared to 2009. Other product
Net sales increased $8.1 million, or 12.6%, as @egbto 2009. Many of our Pillows and Other prodwe sold with mattress purchas
Therefore, when Mattress sales increase, PillowsQther products are also impacted.

Gross profit. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 20t@eased to $555.4 million from $393.7 million the same period in
2009, an increase of $161.7 million, or 41.1%. Gro®fit margin for the year ended December 310204s 50.2%, as compared to 47.4% in
the same period of 2009. Our Gross profit margimigacted by, among other factors, geographic rabwben segments. Additionally, our
gross profit margin includes a royalty paid by Merth American segment to our International segnbased on production volume, which has
the effect of lowering the North American segmenggorted Gross profit margin, and increasing tiierhational segment’s reported Gross
profit margin. The principal factors that impactedbss profit margin during the year are identiféed discussed below in the respective
segment discussions.

North AmericaNorth American Gross profit for the year ended Deloer 31, 2010 increased to $358.3 million from $824illion for
the same period in 2009, an increase of $135.7omjlbr 61.0%. The Gross profit margin in our NofAttlmerican segment was 46.4% and
42.4% for the year ended December 31, 2010 and, 2868Pectively. Improvements in our North Ameri¢aoss profit margin were primarily
driven by improved efficiencies in our manufactgriprocesses and fixed cost leverage related tehighlumes. These factors were partially
offset by higher commodity costs. Our North Amenic2ost of sales increased to $413.7 million forytear ended December 31, 2010 as
compared to $302.8 million for the year ended Ddoem31, 2009, an increase of $111.0 million, o7%&.

International.International Gross profit for the year ended Delsen81, 2010 increased to $197.1 million from $27illion for the
same period in 2009, an increase of $26.0 millowrl,5.2%. The Gross profit margin in our Internatibsegment was 59.1% and 56.0% for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respgctia the year ended December 31, 2010, improvesnemur International Gross pro
margin were primarily driven by improved efficieasiin our manufacturing processes and fixed costdge related to higher volumes. These
factors were partially offset by higher commodibsts. Our International Cost of sales for the ygated December 31, 2010 increased to
$136.3 million, as compared to $134.7 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2009, an increase®fidillion, or 1.2%.

Selling and marketing expenses. Selling and marketing expenses increased to $188lidn for the year ended December 31, 2010 as
compared to $153.4 million for the year ended Ddmem31, 2009, an increase of $46.3 million, or 3.3elling and marketing expenses as a
percentage of Net sales was relatively flat at%8ii 2010, compared to 18.5% for 2009. Our adviegiexpense for the year ended December
31, 2010 was $96.6 million, or 8.7% of Net salesnpared to $69.3 million, or 8.3%, for the samdqekin 2009, an increase of $27.3 million.
Our objective is to align advertising expenses with sales expectations. During 2010, we made imesds in advertising to drive future
growth. For example, our marketing and advertisiagnpaign “Ask Me,” ™ which continued in 2010, foegon increasing awareness of our
products and the benefits they offer through wdrdaouth and social networking outlets. All othellisg and marketing expenses increased
$19.0 million, or 22.6%, which was driven by oucriease in Net sales. All other selling and markeérpenses as a percentage of Net sales
were approximately 9.3% and 10.1% for the yeareérmdkecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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General, administrative and other expenses. General, administrative and other expenses ascamage of Net sales was 9.9% for the
year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 1Di58tef same period in 2009. General, administratiwe other expenses increase
$109.8 million for the year ended December 31, 284 8ompared to $95.4 million for the year endeddb#ber 31, 2009, an increase of $14.4
million, or 15.1%. The increase in General, adntiatsve and other expenses were primarily a rexfudin increase in salaries and associated
expenses of $6.3 million and fees associated widmting programs in our Direct sales channel o8 $dillion, both of which were driven by
our strong operating performance. In addition,ramease in professional fees related to strategiearch studies of $1.9 million and our
ongoing investments in information technology of4s@illion also contributed to this increase. Tlffe@s of these items have been partially
offset by a decrease in bad debt expense of $3lidmivhich reflects the improved condition of aerceivables portfolio. Research and
development expenses for the year ended Decemb@03Q were $7.4 million compared to $6.5 millian the same period in 2009. In 2010,
we increased our investment in research and dewedopin order to improve our existing product lared continue to introduce new and
differentiated products.

I nterest expense, net. Interest expense, net includes the interest cestscated with our borrowings and the amortizatibdeferred
financing costs related to those borrowings. Irgeexpense, net, decreased to $14.5 million foyéae ended December 31, 2010 as comparec
to $17.3 million for the year ended December 3D2@& decrease of $2.8 million, or 16.4%. The dexgen interest expense is primarily
attributable to a decrease in the portion of theeulying debt subject to our interest rate swafsedfby an increase in debt outstanding not
subject to the interest rate swap. The interestaatour variable rate debt was lower than thelfpege of the interest rate swap.

I ncome before income taxes. Income before income taxes for the year ended Deeefil, 2010 increased to $230.9 million from $Q.
million for the same period in 2009, an increas&132.8 million, or 80.3%. North America income dref income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2010 increased to $137.7 million f&28.7 million for the same period in 2009, an imse of $88.0 million, or 177.0%.
International income before income taxes for therynded December 31, 2010 increased to $93.2mifllom $78.3 million for the same
period in 2009, an increase of $14.8 million, or9®8. The increase in income before income taxesawvasult of the items discussed above.

Incometax provision. Our effective tax rate was 31.9% and 33.6% foryiars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respgctivet
decrease primarily relates to increased benefiicdaed with certain manufacturing deductions adible under U.S. law and the release of
valuation allowances against deferred tax assatertdin foreign entities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal sources of funds are cash flows faparations, borrowings made pursuant to the Seviedit Facility and cash and cash
equivalents on hand. Principal uses of funds coon$ishare repurchases made from time to time jpumsio share repurchase authorizations,
payments of principal and interest on our Seni@d@r-acility, acquisition of certain former thipdrty distributors, capital expenditures and
working capital. At December 31, 2011, we had wogktapital of $196.3 million, including Cash andlt@quivalents of $111.4 million as
compared to working capital of $125.2 million inding $53.6 million in Cash and cash equivalentsfddecember 31, 2010. Working capital
increased 56.7% for the year ended December 31, @hpared to the same period in 2010, primarigtee to the growth in our business i
cash and cash equivalents in our International segm

Cash provided by operating activities increased&64llion to $248.7 million for the year ended Retber 31, 2011, as compared to
$184.1 million for the same period in 2010. Thed@ase in cash provided by operating activities gegesto an increase in Net income of $62.5
million, increased amortization of stock-based cengation of $5.1 million due to the February 20ddng of performance-based restricted
stock units, and an increase in change in operassgts and liabilities of $5.5 million, partiatiffset by a decrease in deferred taxes of $13.5
million primarily due to the release of valuatidiowances recorded against certain net operatisgel®. The net change in operating assets anc
liabilities are primarily driven by increased Accus payable, partially offset by increased levédlgwgentory and Accounts receivable, all of
which increased to support our growth during 2011.
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Cash used in investing activities decreased tol®3dlion for the year ended December 31, 2011cespared to $37.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, a decrease of $llidnmThe decrease primarily related to the AROGILO acquisition of our former third pal
distributor in Canada, partially offset by an irese in capital expenditures. In 2011, we madeegfi@investments, including an information
technology upgrade, and capital projects that wie\rs create long-term operational efficiencies angport future growth.

Cash used by financing activities was $148.9 nilfior the year ended December 31, 2011 as compau®tD6.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, representing an increasesh used of $42.5 million. This increase wasarily related to an increase in share
repurchases during the year ended December 31,df(1115.9 million, partially offset by an increasenet borrowings of $67.0 million and
an increase in the amount of deductions taken eiCthmpany’s income tax returns for certain stockeblacompensation awards exceeding
cumulative compensation cost recognized on thenéiad statements due to increased stock optionises and the Company’s stock price.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures totaled $29.5 million for ylemr ended December 31, 2011 and $18.1 milliothferyear ended December 31,
2010. We currently expect our 2012 capital expemeg to be approximately $50.0 million. This expéldncrease in capital expenditures in
2012 is attributable to continued strategic investta that we believe will support our plans fortowred growth in future periods, including
information technology upgrades and a new corpdreéglquarters in Lexington, Kentucky.

Debt Service

Our long-term debt increased to $585.0 milk@of December 31, 2011 from $407.0 million aBetember 31, 2010. Aftegiving
effect to $585.0 million in borrowings under thenf& Credit Facility and letters of credit outstarglof $1.0 million, total availability under
the Revolvers was $184.0 million as of December2B811. On June 28, 2011, the Company amended atedad its Senior Credit Facility, as
amended, which increased the total availabilityarrtte facility to an aggregate of $770.0 milliadded an option to increase domestic
availability by an additional $250.0 million, extéed the maturity date to June 28, 2016 and incdetheeapplicable margins and certain fees to
current market conditions.

As of December 31, 2011, we are in compliance withdebt covenants. The table below sets fortltéheaulation of our compliance
with the Funded debt to Earnings Before InteresieseDepreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) covenddwth Funded debt and EBITDA ¢
terms that are not recognized under U.S. GAAP andadl purport to be alternatives to Net income ageasure of operating performance or
Total debt.

Reconciliation of Net income to EBITL

The following table sets forth the reconciliatioitite Company’s reported Net income to the caliofadf EBITDA for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011:

Twelve
Months Ended
December 31

(In thousands) 2011
GAAP Net income $ 219,60¢
Plus:
Interest expens 11,94¢
Income taxe 108,78:
Depreciation & amortization 50,98t
EBITDA $ 391,32°
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Reconciliation of Total debt to Funded d:

The following table sets forth the reconciliatioitioe Companys reported Total debt to the calculation of fundetit and funded debt
EBITDA ratio as of December 31, 2011:

As of
December 31
(In thousands) 2011
GAAP basis Total debt $ 585,00(
Plus:

Letters of credit outstanding 99C
Funded debt $ 585,99(
EBITDA $ 391,32°
Funded debt to EBITD/ 1.50 time

The ratio of Funded debt to EBITDA was 1.50ds8, within the covenant of our Senior Credit Rggilvhich requires this ratio not
exceed 3.0 times.

We provide information regarding EBITDA andrieled debt which are not recognized terms under GAAP and do not purport to
be alternatives to Net income as a measure of tipgnaerformance or Total debt. Because not allganies use identical calculations, these
presentations may not be comparable to other gimiiled measures of other companies. A recoatdn of our Net income to EBITDA anc
reconciliation of Total debt to Funded debt haverbprovided in this Management’s Discussion andiysisand we believe the use of these
non-GAAP financial measures provide investors with &ddal useful information with respect to our Ser@edit Facility and our complian
with the related debt covenants.

Stockholders’ Equity

Share Repurchase Programuring 2011, we purchased 6.5 million shares ofammmon stock for a total cost of $368.5 million
pursuant to authorizations made by our Board oé®ars. On January 23, 2012, our Board of Dirednminated the existing authority under
the July 2011 authorization, as amended in Octab&i, and approved a new share repurchase auttanizd up to $250.0 million of our
common stock. Share repurchases under this austioriznay be made through open market transactmgmtiated purchases or otherwise, at
times and in such amounts as management and a temwoii the Board deem appropriate; these repueshasy be funded by operating cash
flows and/or borrowings under our Senior Creditifttc This share repurchase program may be limigepended or terminated at any time
without notice.

Future Liquidity Source

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow fraperations and borrowings under our Senior Cieaiiflity, which we amended and
restated in 2011. We expect that ongoing requirésnfen debt service and capital expenditures vélfinded from these sources. As of
December 31, 2011, we had $585.0 million in to@hg-term debt outstanding, and our Stockholdersiitfqvas $30.8 million. Our debt
service obligations could, under certain circumsésn have material consequences to our securithefolTotal cash interest payments related
to our borrowings is expected to be approximatd®.@ million in 2012. Interest expense in the pesipresented also includes non-cash
amortization of deferred financing costs.

Based upon the current level of operations ancipatied growth, we believe that cash generated &iperations and amounts available
under our Senior Credit Facility will be adequaterteet our anticipated debt service requiremeatsial expenditures, share repurchases, and
working capital needs for the foreseeable fututeer€ can be no assurance, however, that our basiikgenerate sufficient cash flow from
operations or that future borrowings will be avliéaunder facilities or otherwise enable us to isereur indebtedness or to make anticipated
capital expenditures.
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At December 31, 2011, total cash and cash equitsaeas $111.4 million, of which $10.8 million waslth in the U.S. and $100.6
million was held by subsidiaries outside of the UlBe amount of cash and cash equivalents heldilbsidiaries outside of the U.S. and not
readily convertible into other foreign currenciesluding the U.S. Dollar, is not material to oweaeall liquidity or financial position. If these
funds are needed for our U.S. operations, we magdpgired to accrue and pay U.S. taxes to repattiegse funds. Our intent is to permanently
reinvest these funds outside of the U.S., withpibgsible exception of funds that have been prelyauject to U.S. federal and state taxation.
Our current plans do not demonstrate a need tdrigtgacash held by our foreign subsidiaries imxable transaction to fund our U.S.
operations. Our U.S. cash flows continue to beidefit to fund our domestic operations and oblwyadi including investing and financing
activities such as debt service and share repugshas

Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations and other commerciahgitments as of December 31, 2011 are summarizeavbe

Payment Due By Perioc

Contractual

Obligations After Total

($ in millions) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 Obligations (2)
Long-term debf $ —$ —$ — $ — % 585.C $ —$ 585.(
Letters of credi 0.5 0.t — — — — 1.C
Interest payments (: 15.5 15.5 14.€ 14.¢ 12.5 — 72.7
Operating leases 7.3 4.€ 3.3 3.1 2.4 3.C 23.7
Capital expenditure

commitments 15.7 — — — — — 15.7
Total $ 39.C $ 20.€ $ 17 $ 17.7 $ 599.¢ $ 3C $ 698.1

(1) Represents interest payments under our debt agnteimetstanding as of December 31, 2011, assungbgalitstanding as of the enc
2011 is not repaid until debt matures in June 20i@rest payments are calculated based on LIB@R g@pplicable margin in effect
December 31, 2011, after giving effect to the ieserate swap agreement that was entered into gugtl011. The interest rate s\
converts a declining balance of our outstanding@ddredit Facility from a variable rate to a fixeate. The actual interest rates on
variable indebtedness incurred and the amount oihdebtedness could vary from those used to coeniiiet above interest payme

(2) Excludes $16.1 million related to accrued unrecoeghitax benefits, relating to the Comp’s uncertain tax positions, including inte
and penalties, as the period of payment cannoédsonably estimate

Factors That May Affect Future Perfo rmance

General Business and Economic ConditioBsir business has been affected by general bgsameseconomic conditions, and these
conditions could have an impact on future demamnafw products. The U.S. macroeconomic environmed challenging in 2009 and was the
primary factor in a slowdown in the mattress indudih 2010, the U.S. macroeconomic environmentrowpd slightly, but remained
uncertain. In addition, our International segniead experienced weakening as a result of genesaldrs and economic conditions. In 2011,
the global economic environment continued to bdlehging, and we expect the uncertainty to remaifad12.

In light of the macroeconomic environment, we tetdps to further align our cost structure with anticipated level of Net sales. In
2011, we continued to make strategic investmentdyuding: maintaining focus on premium mattresses@llows and introducing new
products; investing in increasing our global bramdireness; extending our presence and improvingetail account productivity and
distribution; investing in our operating infrasttue to meet the requirements of our businesstalidg actions to further strengthen our
business.
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Managing GrowthOver the last few years, we have had to managbusiness both through periods of rapid growth arwhemic
uncertainty. Our Net sales increased from $221Ibomiin 2001 to $1.1 billion in 2007 and decrease&927.8 million in 2008 and $831.2
million in 2009. For the years ended December B102and 2011, our Net sales increased to $1.bmiind $1.4 billion, respectively. In the
past, our growth has placed, and may continuedoepla strain on our management, production, ptatisiribution network, information
systems and other resources. In response to ty@se of challenges, management has continued tmeatoperating and financial
infrastructure, as appropriate. In addition, dur2@97 through 2009, we had to manage a declinal@s ®s a result of the macroeconomic
environment. During this period, we had to managrecost structure to contain costs. Going forware expect our expenditures to enhance
our operating and financial infrastructure, as \aslexpenditures for advertising and other margetihated activities, will continue to be made
as the continued growth in the business allowhe@sbility to make strategic investments. Howetlegse expenditures may be limited by
lower than planned sales or an inflationary cosirenment.

Gross Margins Our gross margin is primarily impacted by fixezstleverage, the cost of raw materials, operatieffi@iency, product,
channel and geographic mix, volume incentives effe@p certain retail accounts and costs associgitechew product introductions. We
experienced increases in the price of certain raterials during 2011. Future increases in raw rigdtprices could have a negative impact on
our gross margin if we do not raise prices to conereased cost. Our gross margin can also be iregdy our operational efficiencies,
including the particular levels of utilization atrathree manufacturing facilities. We have madaificant investments in our manufacturing
infrastructure and have available manufacturingacdyp. If we increase our Net sales significantig effect of this operating leverage could
have a significant positive impact on our grossgimarOur margins are also impacted by the growtbunRetail channel as sales in our Retalil
channel are at wholesale prices whereas saleg iDicect channel are at retail prices. Additionatiyir overall product mix has shifted to
mattresses and other products over the last sexemed, which has impacted our gross margins beaaastresses generally carry lower
margins than pillows and are sold with lower mangioducts such as adjustable bed bases and foanglatWe expect our gross margins to be
up for the full year 2012 through continued prodlitst programs and volume leverage, partially offeg increased commodity costs.

Competition Participants in the mattress and pillow industdespete primarily on price, quality, brand nameogggtion, product
availability, and product performance. We compeith & number of different types of mattress altéues, including standard innerspring
mattresses, other foam mattresses, waterbedssfuaorbeds and other air-supported mattresseseTdleernative products are sold through a
variety of channels, including furniture and bedggtores, department stores, mass merchants, aloldabs, telemarketing programs,
television infomercials, television advertising aratalogs.

Our largest competitors have significant finanamadrketing and manufacturing resources and strosgdoname recognition, and sell
their products through broad and well establishisttidution channels. Additionally, we believe tlmahumber of our significant competitors
offer mattress products claimed to be similar to BEMPUR® mattresses and pillows. We provide strohgnnel profits to our retailers and
distributors which management believes will congirta provide an attractive business model for etailers and discourage them from
carrying competing lower-priced products.

Significant Growth Opportunitie®Ve believe there are significant opportunitiesaticet market share from the innerspring mattress
industry as well as other sleep surfaces. Our mahare of the overall mattress industry is reyivsmall in terms of both dollars and units,
which we believe provides us with a significant ogpnity for growth. By broadening our brand awaesmand offering superior sleep surfa
we believe consumers will over time adopt our paigat an increasing rate, which should expandmarket share. We recently launched
the TEMPUR-Simplicity ™ collection in North Amegdavhich broadens our addressable market withiptamium category. The TEMPUR-
Simplicity ™ collection features three new mattessthat offer a solution for every sleep preferehttevever, our business may be affected by
general business and economic conditions that dwaleé an impact on demand for our products.
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Additionally, by expanding distribution within oexisting accounts, we believe we have the oppdstuaigrow our business. By
extending our product line through our segmentatioproducts, we should be able to continue to egghe number of Tempur-Pedic ®
models offered at the retail store level, whichidtldead to increased sales. Based on this strategyelieve a focus on expanding distribution
within our existing accounts and adding additicaatounts, provides for continued growth opportesitind market share gains. However, our
business may continue to be affected by generahbss and economic conditions that could have gadatnon demand for our products, which
could limit our market share and decrease salespfualucts are currently sold in approximately D,8@rniture and bedding retail stores in the
North American segment, out of a total of approxiehall,500 stores we have identified as approptiatgets. Within this addressable mar
our plan is to increase our total penetration total of 9,000 to 10,000 over time. Our products @so sold in approximately 5,200 furniture
retail and department stores in the Internatioaghsent, out of a total of approximately 8,000 stdhat we have identified as appropriate
targets. We are continuing to develop productsdanatresponsive to consumer demand in our manketshationally.

Financial LeverageAs of December 31, 2011, we had $585.0 million ofgi-term debt outstanding, and our Stockholdersiitiqvas
$30.8 million. Higher financial leverage makes usrenvulnerable to general adverse competitive, @in and industry conditions. During
2011, we increased our total debt by $178.0 mijlliowever, our improved financial performance o¥és period has mitigated the impact of
this increased debt on our leverage ratios. On 28n2011, we amended and restated our SeniortCradility which increased the total
availability under the facility to an aggregate$d70.0 million, added an option to increase doroestailability by an additional $250.0
million, extended the maturity date to June 28,8@hd increased the applicable margins and cegamto current market conditions. There
can be no assurance, however, that our businelsgemierate sufficient cash flow from operationshat future borrowing will be available
under our Senior Credit Facility. As of Decembey 2011, our ratio of funded debt to EBITDA was 1tBfes, within the covenant in our
Senior Credit Facility, which requires this ratiotrexceed 3.0 times. On August 8, 2011, we entetech new four-year interest rate swap
agreement to manage interest costs and the rislawiging interest rates associated with a porti@upborrowings outstanding under our
Senior Credit Facility. See “ITEM 7A. Quantitatimad Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—IetrRate Risk” under Part Il of this
report.

Exchange RatesAs a multinational company, we conduct our bussna a wide variety of currencies and are theeefmibject to marki
risk for changes in foreign exchange rates. Wefargggn exchange forward contracts to manage aguoof the risk of the eventual net cash
inflows and outflows resulting from foreign currgndenominated transactions between Tempur-Pedgidiakies and their customers and
suppliers, as well as between the Tempur-Pediddiabies themselves. These hedging transactionsnmoagucceed in effectively managing
our foreign currency exchange rate risk. We typyodb not apply hedge accounting to these contr&ste “ITEM 7A. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Foreigar@ncy Exposures” under Part Il of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management is responsible for our financidestents and has evaluated the accounting policibe tised in their preparation. Our
management believes these policies are reasonadbleppropriate. The following discussion identifieese accounting policies that we beli
are critical in the preparation of our financiatsiments, the judgments and uncertainties affetitie@pplication of those policies and the
possibility that materially different amounts wikk reported under different conditions or usindedént assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires that management makinedées and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasl#éind disclosure of commitments and contingerati®e date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhereporting period. Our actual results couféedifrom those estimates.

Revenue Recognitioibales of product are recognized when persuasidergce of an arrangement exists, products argetipnd

title passes to customers and the risks and revedirolsnership are transferred, the sales pricexéfor determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured. We extend volume discountsrtaie customers and reflect these amounts asuatied of Net sales.
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Our estimates of sales returns are a critical carapbof our revenue recognition. We recognize salesof estimated returns, when we
ship our products to customers and the risks awdnads of ownership are transferred to them. Estithatiles returns are provided at the tir
sale, based on our level of historical sales rstiie allow returns for up to 120 days followingade, depending on the channel and
promotion. Our level of sales returns differs bychel, with our Direct channel typically experiergihe highest rate of returns. Our level of
returns has been consistent with our estimatefiasdbeen improving steadily over the last yeanaRRetail channel, which experiences lower
returns than other sales channels, continues t@ gsoa percentage of overall Net sales.

We do not recognize revenue unless collectabgitfyeasonably assured at the time of sale. We extedit based on the creditworthin
of our customers, and generally no collateral igied at the time of sale. Our allowance for déulketccounts is our best estimate of the
amount of probable credit losses in our existingpaats receivable. We regularly review the adequdour allowance for doubtful accounts.
We determine the allowance based on historicakvafit experience and current economic conditionsasd consider factors such as custc
credit, past transaction history with the custoarat changes in customer payment terms when detegnirhether the collection of a
receivable is reasonably assured. Historicallys than 1% of Net sales ultimately prove to be uectible. Account balances are charged off
against the allowance after all reasonable meansligiction have been exhausted and the potewtiaktovery is considered remote.

WarrantiesCost of sales includes estimated costs to servareanty claims of our customers. Our estimate s&&fan our historical
claims experience and extensive product testingwkgerform from time to time. We provide a 204yearranty for sales in the North
American segment and a 15-year warranty for Intesnal segment sales on mattresses, each proxatéeflast 10 years. Because the
majority of our products have not been in use hyomstomers for the full warranty period, we retythe combination of historical experience
and product testing for the development of oumeste for warranty claims. Our estimate of warrasiyms could be adversely affected if our
historical experience differs materially from therfprmance of the product in our product testing &l50 provide 2-year to 3-year warranties
on pillows. Estimated future obligations relatedhese products are provided by charges to opesatinthe period in which the related reve
is recognized.

Long-Lived Asset3he cost of plant and equipment is depreciatechbystraight-line method over the estimated uséfaklof the
assets. Useful lives are based on historical éepes and are adjusted when changes in plannedeabaological advances or other factors
show that a different life would be more appromiaBuch costs are periodically reviewed for recaitity when impairment indicators are
present. Such indicators include, among otheofacbperating losses, unused capacity, markeewagalines and technological
obsolescence. Recorded values of property, ptaheguipment that are not expected to be recoveredgh undiscounted future net cash
flows are written down to current fair value, whigénerally is determined from estimated discoufuéate net cash flows (assets held for use)
or net realizable value (assets held for sale).

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefiritees are subject to an annual impairment testff &ctober 1 and whenever events or
circumstances make it more likely than not thataimpent may have occurred. Such tests are contpdetgarately with respect to the good
of each of our reportable business segments. Beaaarket prices of our reporting units are nadifgavailable, we make various estimates
and assumptions in determining the estimated fdires of those units. Fair value is based on eonire approach, with an appropriate risk
adjusted discount rate, and a market approachifieegm assumptions inherent in the methodologresesnployed and include such estimates
as discount rates, growth rates and the selecfipeer company multiples. The use of alternatieregtes or adjusting the discount rate could
affect the estimated fair value of the assets anterpially result in impairment.

We have determined that our reporting units favation of goodwill are our North American and hmitional operating segments. The
most recent annual impairment tests indicatedttteafair values of each of our reporting units &nade name (which has an indefinite life)
were substantially in excess of their carrying ealiDespite that excess, however, impairment chargeld still be required if a divestiture
decision were made or other significant economanéwere made or occurred with respect to one pfeporting units. Subsequent to our
October 1 annual impairment test, no indicationarofmpairment were identified.
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Income TaxesAccounting for income taxes requires recognitibdeferred tax liabilities and assets for the expe future tax
consequences of events that have been includéa iiinancial statements or tax returns. Underrigshod, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference betweefinduecial statement and tax bases of assets dpitities. These deferred taxes are measured
by applying the provisions of tax laws in effectta balance sheet date.

We recognize deferred tax assets in our Consotidaédance Sheets, and these deferred tax assatallypepresent items deducted
currently from operating income in the financiatstments that will be deducted in future periodsiareturns. A valuation allowance is
recorded against certain deferred tax assets taeetthe consolidated deferred tax asset to an antleainwill, more likely than not, be realized
in future periods. The valuation allowance is bagegart, on our estimate of future taxable incpthe expected utilization of foreign tax loss
carryforwards, and the expiration dates of suchdag carryforwards. Significant assumptions aetlus developing the analysis of future
taxable income for purposes of determining the atidin allowance for deferred tax assets whichuinapinion, are reasonable under the
circumstances. At December 31, 2011, we have peovidluation allowances for substantially all sdizsies in a cumulative three year loss
position.

Our consolidated effective tax rate and related¢merves are subject to uncertainties in the egtjdin of complex tax regulations from
numerous tax jurisdictions around the world. Wepgmize liabilities for anticipated taxes in theSUand other tax jurisdictions based on our
estimate of whether, and the extent to which, taxesand could be due. This liability is estimateded on a prescribed recognition threshold
and measurement attributes for the financial statgmecognition and measurements of a tax podisikan or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The resolution of tax matters for an amdhat is different than the amount reserved woelddrognized in our effective tax rate dui
the period in which such resolution occurs.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See “ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeridata - Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Fira@rstatements” in Part Il of this
report for a full description of recent accountprgnouncements, including the expected dates gftamoand estimated effects on results of
operations and financial condition, which is inamated herein by reference.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exposures

Our earnings, as a result of our global operatimd)fmancing activities, are exposed to changdereign currency exchange rates, wi
may adversely affect our results of operationsfarahcial position. Our outlook for 2012 assumesdest unfavorable currency exchange rates
versus the year ended December 31, 2011. Shoulenayrrates change sharply, our results could ipadated.

We protect a portion of our currency exchange expowith foreign currency forward contracts. A sewisy analysis indicates the
potential loss in fair value on foreign currencyiard contracts outstanding at December 31, 2@kllting from a hypothetical 10% adverse
change in all foreign currency exchange rates ag#e U.S. dollar, is approximately $0.1 millio8uch losses would be largely offset by g
from the revaluation or settlement of the undedydssets and liabilities that are being protectethe foreign currency forward contracts.

We do not apply hedge accounting to the foreigrrency forward contracts used to offset curyeretated changes in the fair value

foreign currency denominated assets and liabilifié®se contracts are marked-to-market throughreggrat the same time that the exposed
assets and liabilities are remeasured throughregsni
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Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates. QuioiSeredit Facility has a variable rate. On AugBis011, we entered into a new four-
year interest rate swap agreement to manage ihtasts and the risk of changing interest ratesaated with a portion of the borrowin
outstanding under our Senior Credit Facility. Unthés swap, we pay at a fixed rate and receive gaysat a variable rate. The swap
effectively fixes the floating LIBOR-based intereate to 1.25% on $250.0 million of the outstanddadance as of December 31, 2011 under
our Senior Credit Facility, with the outstandindavece declining over time. The interest rate swagres on December 30, 2015. The
Company will select the LIBORased rate on the hedged portion of our SenioriCFedility during the term of the swap. The effeetportior
of the change in value of the swap is reflected asmponent of comprehensive income and recogrigénterest expense, net as payments are
paid or accrued. The remaining gain or loss in sxad# the cumulative change in the present valubeofuture cash flows of the hedged iter
any (i.e., the ineffective portion) or hedge comguts excluded from the assessment of effectivesressecognized as Interest expense, net
during the current period.

Interest rate changes generally do not affect taeket value of such debt but do impact the amotintiointerest payments and
therefore, our future earnings and cash flows, ragsy other factors are held constant. On Decembgf@11, after giving effect to our interest
rate swap agreement, we had variable-rate delgprbaimately $335.0 million. Holding other variableonstant, including levels of
indebtedness, a one hundred basis point incredstenest rates on our variable-rate debt wouldsean estimated reduction in income before
income taxes for the next year of approximately$8illion.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements required by this itemiactuded in Part IV, ITEM 15 of this report and gnesented beginning on page 46.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervisiahwith the participation of our management, inaglgdour Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer) and Chief FinancidfiGer (principal financial officer), of the efféeeness of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and b%el) Linder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (Exchange Act), as of the end
of the period covered by this report. Based on¢latuation, our management, including our Chieddistive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls prmtedures were effective as of December 31, 281d designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in reports thatileeof submit under the Exchange Act, is recorgedcessed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and forfthe Securities and Exchange Commission and tiet sformation is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Cliefcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,@gpropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaicitaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exgleafsct of 1934, as amended. Our internal contrek dwnancial reporting is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation iofancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can peowidly reasonable assurance of achieving theiraboijectives.
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Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Detxmn31, 2011. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteriargebfothe Committee of Sponsoring OrganizationthefTreadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Contro—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment and those criteria, reianes believes that we maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Baetber 31, 2011.

Our independent registered public accounting fleEmst & Young LLP, has issued a report on the Camgjsainternal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. Thabrt appears on page 44 of this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirng

There have not been any changes in our internataayver financial reporting during the quarteded December 31, 2011 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempur-Rdic International Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited Tempur-Pedic International Inc. @abisidiaries’ internal control over financial refng as of December 31, 2011, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integralgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorimga@irations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Tempur-Pedic Irdéomal Inc. and Subsidiaries’ management is resipefor maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and ftsrassessment of the effectiveness of internakebaver financial reporting included in the
accompanying “Management’s Annual Report on Inte@untrol Over Financial Reporting.” Our resporiliipis to express an opinion on the
company'’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coragwar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiaguthe design and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or de¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Tempur-Pedic International Inc. 8ubsidiaries maintained, in all material respesffgctive internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on theCCOi#eria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Tempur-Pedic International Ind.@ubsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 20tDthee related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsdach of the three years in the period ended DeeeB1 2011 and our reported dated
January 30, 2012, expressed an unqualified opithiereon.

/s! Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
January 30, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference from our definitivexyretatement for the 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the Proxy Statement) utidersections entitled “Proposal One—Election akbiors,” and “Board of Directors’
Meetings, Committees of the Board and Related Matt€orporate Governance,” — "Committees of the Bdar"Policies Governing
Director Nominations,” and “Executive Compensatémd Related Information—Section 16(a) Benefi€ialnership Reporting Compliance.”

Information relating to executive officers is setth in Part | of this report following ITEM 1 undthe caption Executive Officers of th
Registrant.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorpeby reference from the Proxy Statement undes¢b#ons entitled “Executive
Compensation and Related Information” and “Boar®wéctors’ Meetings, Committees of the Board amiafed Matters—Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

For information required by S-K 201(d) see “ItemMarket for Registrant’'s Common Equity, RelatedcRtwlder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities—Equity Compensdian Information” under Part Il of this report.

All other information required by this Item is impmrated by reference from the Proxy Statement utigesection entitled “Principal
Security Ownership and Certain Beneficial Owners.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference from the Proxy Statement undeselsgon entitled “Executive
Compensation and Related Information—Certain Ralatiips and Related Transactions” aBddrd of Directors' Meetings, Committees of
Board and Related matters—Directors’ Independence.”
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference from the Proxy Statement undeselsgons entitled “Proposal Two—

Ratification of Independent Auditors—Fees for Indiegent Auditors During Fiscal Year Ended DecemiieB11” and “—Policy on Audit
Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Sees of Independent Auditor.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

1. Financial statement
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistepPedblic Accounting Firn
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseéicember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, &t 201(
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 200200¢
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraded December 31, 2011, 2010 and =z
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

2. Financial Statement Schedu
Schedule —Valuation of Qualifying Accounts and Resen

All other schedules have been omitted becausedteeinapplicable, not required, or the informat®included elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits:
The following is an index of the exhibits includiedthis report or incorporated herein by reference.
EXHIBIT INDEX

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohempu-Pedic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 tonandment No. 3 to tF
Registrar’s registration statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-109798) as filed on December 12, 2003).

3.2 Fourth Amended and Restated By-laws of Teniadic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 teetRegistrant’'s Current Report on Form
8-K as filed on March 11, 2010). (

4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of commonks(iled as Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 3 to thedistrant’s registration statement on
Form &-1 (File No. 33-109798) as filed on December 12, 2003).

10.1 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated &snef 28, 2011 among Tem-Pedic Management, Inc., C-Foam ApS, a
Borrowers; Tempur-Pedic International Inc., TemWorld, LLC, and Certain Subsidiaries and Affiliatefsthe Borrowers as Guarantors;
Bank of America, N.A., as Domestic Administrativgent and Domestic Collateral Agent; Nordea BankrDak A/S, as Foreign
Administrative Agent, European Co-Agent and Foreigilateral Agent; Fifth Third Bank and JPMorganaSk Bank, N.A. as U.S. Co-
Agents; Wells Fargo Bank National Association, gadication Agent; Merrill Lynch, Piece, Fenner & Bimincorporated and Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers Juoidt Book Managers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Ré&gist's Current Report on Form 8-
K as filed on June 29, 2011). (

10.2 Bond Purchase Agreement, dated October 26, 2y and among Tempur World LLC, Tempur ProductitSA, Inc. and Bernalillo
County (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrs Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 2006). (

10.3 Trust Indenture, dated September 1, 2005, by atvdeeem Bernalillo County and The Bank of New Yorlku3$rCompany, N.A., as Trust
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registr’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 2006). (

10.4 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fexkiting, dated as of October 27, 2005, by and betwBernalillo County an
Tempur Production USA, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 1@0the Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 2006). (1

10.5 Lease Agreement, dated September 1, 2005, by aneée Bernalillo County and Tempur Production US#. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 t
the Registrar s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 2006). (

10.6 Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plandfds Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly ®&epn Form 10-Q as filed on
July 28, 2010). (1) (2

10.7 Tempu-Pedic International Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plaleffias Exhibit 10.5 to the Registr’s registration statement on Forr-4 (File
No. 33:-10905+02) as filed on September 23, 2003). (1)

10.8 Amended and Restated Tem-Pedic International Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive P(led as Appendix a to the Registr’'s Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (File No.-31922) as filed on March 24, 2008). (1)

10.9 First Amendment to the Amended and Restdd®8 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix A hetRegistrant’s Registration Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A (File No. -31922) as filed on March 25, 2009). (1)

10.1(Tempur-Pedic International Inc. Long-term Incenti®lan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’sa@arly Report on Form 1Q-as filec
on April 27, 2010). (1) (2

10.1JAmended and Restated Annual Incentive Bonus Pla8édaior Executives (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thegi®tran’s Quarterly Report o
Form 1(-Q as filed on April 27, 2010). (1) (:

10.12Tempu-Pedic International Inc. 2003 Employee Stock PuseHalan (filed as Exhibit No. 10.18 to Amendment Bl¢to the Registra’s
registration statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-109798) filed with the Commission on December 1103). (1) (2)

10.1:Employment and Noncompetition Agreement dated as 30, 2008, between Tempur-Pedic Internationaldnd Mark Sarvary (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on June 30, 2008). (1)I

10.14Employment Agreement dated as of July 18, 2006 éetl empuiRedic International Inc. and Richard Anderson ¢fiées Exhibit 10.1 t
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed November 7, 2006). (1) |

10.1:Employment and Noncompetition Agreement dated d3egember 1, 2004, between Ten-Pedic International Inc. and Matthew
Clift (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registri s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on December 2, 2004). (1)

10.1¢Employment and Non-Competition Agreement by anevbeh Tempur-Pedic International Inc. and Lou Hdddienes dated as of June 1,
2009) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registr's Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on July 27, 2009). (1)(

10.17Employment Agreement dated September 12, 2003 deetWempur International Limited and David Montgoyniled as Exhibit 10.13
to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registrataiement on Form S-4 ((File No. 333-109054-04)led on October 31, 2003). (1)
(@)

10.1¢Employment and Non-Competition Agreement by anevbet Tempur-Pedic International Inc. and Brad Blatiated as of September 1,
2010) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on October 28, 2010). (1)

10.1¢Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datedhiVigr2008 by and among TemRedic International Inc., Tempur World, LI
and Dale E. Williams (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to R&tgan’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed March 7, 2008). (1)(:

10.2(Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2003 Bguitentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -
Q as filed August 8, 2006). (1) (

10.21Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendatiRestated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (EVP) (fésdExhibit 9.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Formr-K as filed on May 19, 2008). (1)(:

10.22Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendeatiRestated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directdt@dfas Exhibit 10.40 to
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on February 12, 2009). (1)

10.2:Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Unitedgdiom Approved Share Option Sub Plan to the 2003t¥tncentive Plan (filed a
Exhibit 10.1 to Registra’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on April 30, 2009). (1)(:

10.24Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendatiRestated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directdigdfas Exhibit 10.2 t
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on July 28, 2010). (1) (

10.2tStock Option Agreement dated as of March 12, 2@#éen Tempur-Pedic International Inc. and Nandgdehn (filed as Exhibit 10.1



to the Registra’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on May 17, 2004). (1) (

10.2¢Option Agreement dated as of December 1, 2004 leetwempur-Pedic International Inc. and Matthew Xt iled as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K as filed on December 2, 2004). (1)

10.27Stock Option Agreement dated as of February 236 2@dween Tempur-Pedic International Inc. and Matt. Clift (filed as Exhibit
10.33 to Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on February 28, 2007). (1)

10.2¢&Stock Option Agreement dated as of February 236 2@@ween Temp-Pedic International Inc. and Sir Paul Judge (fdsdExhibit 10.3-
to Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K as filed on February 28, 2007). (1)

10.2¢Stock Option Agreement dated as of February 236 2@@ween Temp-Pedic International Inc. and Nancy F. Koehn (filsdExhibit
10.35 to Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on February 28, 2007). (1)

10.3(Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2006 betWearpur-Pedic International Inc. and David Montgoynited as Exhibit 10.7 to
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed August 8, 2006). (1) (

10.31Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2006 betWeempur-Pedic International Inc. and Dale E. Will&ffiled as Exhibit 10.8 to
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed August 8, 2006). (1) (

10.3:2Stock Option Agreement dated February 5, 2008 betwiempu-Pedic International, Inc. and Richard Andersore(fias Exhibit 10.2 t
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on May 6, 2008). (1) (

10.33Stock Option Agreement dated June 30, 2008 betWeerpur-Pedic International Inc. and Mark Sarvaitgdfas Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on June 30, 2008). (1)

21.1 Subsidiaries of Tempur-Pedic International In

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLF

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursudntSecurities Exchange Act Rules -14(a) and 15-14(a), as adopted pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, murant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(@)1&d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer afthief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. S#ttl350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002. (3

101 The following materials from Temp-Pedic International Inc.'s Annual Report on Forr-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingngaage): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Incdif)éhe Consolidated Balance
Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Stolcldrs' Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statemefit€ash Flows, and (v) the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, taggedaakdlof text.

(1) Incorporated by referenc

(2) Indicates management contract or compensataryor arrangemer

(3) This exhibit shall not be deemed “filed” fourposes of Section 18 of the Securities ExchargeofA1934 or otherwise subject to the
liabilities of that Section, nor shall it be deemedorporated by reference in any filings under $ieeurities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or #fieidate hereof and irrespective of any generalrparation language in any filing
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereualp alithorized.

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC.
(Registrant)

January 30, 201 By: /sl MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934, this report has been signedabbiothe following persons on t
30thof January, 2012, on behalf of the registrant antthé capacities indicated.

Signature Capacity

President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Extes Officer)
/S| MARK SARVARY and Directol

Mark Sarvary

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi(ferincipal
/S/ DALE E. WILLIAMS Financial Officer)

Dale E. Williams

Chief Accounting Officer and Senior Vice PresidEitance
/S/ BHASKAR RAO (Principal Accounting Officer
Bhaskar Rao

IS/ FRANCIS A. DOYLE Director
Francis A. Doyle
/S| EVELYN S. DILSAVER Director
Evelyn S. Dilsaver
/S! PETER K. HOFFMAN Director
Peter K. Hoffman
/S/ JOHN A. HEIL Director
John A. Heil
/SI NANCY F. KOEHN Director

Nancy F. Koehn

/S/ SIR PAUL JUDGE Director
Sir Paul Judge

/S/ CHRISTOPHER A. MAST( Director
Christopher A. Masto

/S/ P. ANDREWS MCLANE Director
P. Andrews McLane

/S/ ROBERT B. TRUSSELL, JF Director
Robert B. Trussell, Jr.
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INDEX TO HISTORICAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistaPetlic Accounting Firn
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseéicember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0d 201(
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 200200¢
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempur-Rdic International Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Tempur-Pedic International Inc. anasiliaries as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, and the related consolidated stateméirtsame, stockholders' equity, and cash flowsgfach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011. Our audits also included thenfttial statement schedule listed in the Indeteat L15(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Companysagament. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Tempur-
Pedic International Inc. and Subsidiaries at Deaamti, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated resttteir operations and their cash flows
each of the three years in the period ended Deae®&ih@011, in conformity with U.S. generally actpaccounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement scheduleen considered in relation to the basic finansiatements taken as a whole, presents fail
all material respects the information set forthréire

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Tempur-Pedic
International Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal cohtver financial reporting as of December 31, 20ddsed on criteria established in Internal
Controldntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated Janue
30, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
January 30, 2012
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per common share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net sales $ 1,417,931 $ 1,105,42. $ 831,15¢
Cost of sale 674,84¢ 549,99« 437,41
Gross profil 743,09( 555,42 393,74.
Selling and marketing expens 276,87( 199,72: 153,44(
General, administrative and other expenses 125,68¢ 109,80: 95,35’
Operating incomi 340,53: 245,90: 144,94t
Other expense, ne

Interest expense, n (11,949 (14,50 (17,349

Other (expense) income, net (192) (53€) 441

Total other expens (12,140 (15,03 (16,909

Income before income tax 328,39: 230,86! 128,03
Income tax provision 108,78: 73,72( 43,04«

Net income $ 219,60¢ $ 157,14' $ 84,99!
Earnings per common sha

Basic $ 327 $ 22 $ 1.12

Diluted $ 3.1 $ 21€ $ 1.12
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic 67,07( 70,34¢ 74,93¢

Diluted 69,14¢ 72,79: 76,04¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents are an integral part of these statements.

F-3




Table of Content

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred income taxes

Total Current Asset
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, r
Other non-current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Income taxes payable
Total Current Liabilities
Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other non-current liabilities
Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note

Stockholder’ Equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300,000 shares amghlp 99,215 share issued as of December .

2011 and 201!

Additional paid in capita

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive I

Treasury stock, at cost; 35,445 and 30,731 share§ Becember 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financite8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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December 31,

2011 2010
111,36° $ 53,62:
142,41 115,63(
91,21: 69,85¢
20,08¢ 18,64¢
14,39: 13,72
379,47 271,48
160,50: 159,80
213,27: 212,46¢
66,49: 68,74¢
8,90/ 3,50:
828,640 $ 716,00:
69,93¢ $ 48,28¢
92,73: 85,46¢
20,50¢ 12,47
183,17 146,23
585,00( 407,00(
24,22’ 32,31
5,44: 4,421
797 84¢ 589,97(
992 992
361,80° 320,95:
742,48 522,87:
(14,686 (6,18%)
(1,059,80) (712,595
30,79: 126,03
828,640 $ 716,00:
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Balance, December 31, 20
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Derivative instrument
accounted for as
hedges, net of tax of $1,8!
Foreign currenc
adjustments
Total Comprehensive
Income
Exercise of stock optior
Tax adjustments related to
stock compensation(:
Amortization of unearne
stock-based compensation
Balance, December 31, 20
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Derivative instruments
accounted for as
hedges, net of tax of $2,1.
Foreign currency
adjustments
Total Comprehensive
Income
Purchase of noncontrollir
interest
Exercise of stock optior
Tax adjustments related to
stock compensatic
Treasury Stock repurcha
Amortization of unearned
stock-based compensation
Balance, December 31, 20
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Derivative instruments
accounted for as
hedges, net of tax of $(46
Foreign currency
adjustments
Total Comprehensive
Income
Exercise of stock optior
Tax adjustments related
stock compensatic
Treasury Stock repurcha
Amortization of unearne
stock-based compensation

Balance, December 31, 20

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Shares

(In thousands)

Treasury Shares

Accumulated

Additional Other
Shares Shares Paid in Retained Comprehensive

Issued At Par Issued At Cost Capital Earnings Loss Total
99,215 $ 99z 24,382 $ (488,399 % 291,01 $ 281,42 $ (12,590 §  72,44!
84,99! 84,99!
2,89t 2,89t
1,691 1,691
84,99! 4,58¢ 89,57¢
(279) 3,13¢ 6 (68¢) 2,457
(841) (841
8,65¢ 8,65¢
99,215 % 99z 24,103 $ (485,269 % 298,84. $ 36572 $ (8,009 & 172,29:
157,14! 157,14!
3,31¢ 3,31¢
(1,499 (1,499
157,14! 1,81¢ 158,96:
(1,469 (1,469
(1,872) 22,66 6,39( 29,05¢
5,59( 5,59(
8,500 (250,001) (250,001)
11,59: 11,59:
99,215 $ 99z 30,731 $ (712,59) % 320,95: $ 522,87 $ (6,189 ¢ 126,03:
219,60! 219,60t
(72¢) (72¢)
(7,779 (7,779
219,60t (8,499 211,11
(1,797) 21,28t 4,97( 26,25¢
19,19: 19,19:
6,511 (368,49) (368,49
16,69: 16,69:
99,215 § 99z 35445 $(1,059,80)$ 361,80 $ 742,48( $ (14,680 30,79:

(1) Includes $359 of Excess tax benefit from stbaked compensation.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents are an integral part of these staterr
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 219,60t $ 157,14 $ 84,99:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashideal byoperating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 34,29t 32,36: 31,42
Amortization of stoc-based compensatic 16,69: 11,60¢ 8,78¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,03« 69C 692
Bad debt expens 1,562 531 5,93¢
Deferred income taxe (8,52¢) 4,94¢ (7,27¢)
Foreign currency adjustmer 1,19¢ (1,666 (11t
Loss on disposal of equipme 54 1,201 564
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts of acquired busines
Accounts receivabl (30,199 (12,757 (10,547
Inventories (18,479 (6,710 3,73¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a (2,772) (6,519 (4,419
Accounts payabl 21,67* (2,145 7,80¢
Accrued expenses and otl 3,86 (370 14,04«
Income taxes payable 8,694 4,80z (651)
Net cash provided by operating activit 248,70t 184,12: 134,98t
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of trademarks and oth (2,044 (684) —
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (4,56¢€) (18,697 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (29,46¢) (18,147 (14,309
Net cash used by investing activit (36,07¢) (37,519 (14,309
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term revolving credit facility 821,50( 308,83t 109,33:
Repayments of lor-term revolving credit facility (643,500 (197,81 (230,03¢)
Payment of deferred financing co (6,217 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common si 26,25¢ 28,55! 1,628
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens: 19,19: 5,59( 35¢
Treasury stock repurchas (365,929) (250,001) —
Other (173) (1,540) —
Net cash used by financing activiti (148,870() (106,37¢) (118,72)
NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CH¢
EQUIVALENTS (6,016 (64¢€) (3,305
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs 57,74+ 39,58: (1,349
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 53,62: 14,04 15,38¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period $ 111,360 $ 53,62! $ 14,04
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period fc
Interes $ 7,961 $ 13,6007 $ 17,52:
Income taxes, net of reful $ 84,15¢ $ 63,85 $ 51,80t

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation and Description of Busingesnpur-Pedic International Inc., a Delaware corponatogether with its
subsidiaries, is a U.S. based, multinational corgp@he term “Tempur-Pedic International” refersTmpur-Pedic International Inc. only, and
the term “Company” refers to Tempur-Pedic Interradil Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. TenWorld, Inc. was formed on January 1,
2000 to combine the manufacturing facilities arel global distribution capabilities of all TEMPUR®aglucts, and Tempur-Pedic International
Inc. was formed in 2002 to acquire Tempur World, Ifihis acquisition (Tempur Acquisition) was efigetas of November 1, 2002.

The Company manufactures, markets and sells predhdtiding pillows, mattresses and other relatedipcts. The Company
manufactures essentially all its pressure-relieiBEPUR®products at three manufacturing facilities, wittedacated in Denmark and twa
the U.S. The Company has sales distribution sudosédi operating in North America, Europe and Asiaifc and has third party distribution
arrangements in certain other countries wheredsdmt have subsidiaries. The Company sells itdyats through four sales channels: Retail,
Direct, Healthcare and Third party.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiembnform to the 2011 presentation of Consolid&timancial Statements, includin
reclassification between current Deferred incomxeatssets and Prepaid expenses and other currets.aBslsese changes do not materially
impact previously reported subtotals within the Salidated Financial Statements for any previougogesresented.

(b) Basis of ConsolidatiorThe accompanying financial statements include tdoeants of Tempur-Pedic International and its
subsidiaries. All subsidiaries are wholly-ownedehsompany balances and transactions have beeimated. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company does not hold any interest in variablergseentities. On January 29, 2010, the Compampksiied a 51% interest in Tempur
Shanghai Holding Ltd (a Hong Kong company). Durdecember 2010, the Company purchased its nondlimgrinterest in Tempur
Shanghai Holding Ltd. Income attributable to tl@+tontrolling interest was not material in 201@ & presented within Other (expense)
income, net within the Consolidated Statementsiobie.

(c) Use of Estimated he preparation of financial statements in conftymiith United States Generally Accepted Accountirinciples
(U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimatésasumptions that affect the reported amourgssdts and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those esttes. The Company’s results are affected by ecamaulitical, legislative, regulatory and
legal actions. Economic conditions, such as recaasy trends, inflation, interest and monetary exge rates, government fiscal policies and
changes in the prices of raw materials, can haigrdficant effect on operations. While the Compamgintains reserves for anticipated
liabilities and carries various levels of insurante Company could be affected by civil, crimimalgulatory or administrative actions, claims
or proceedings.

(d) Foreign CurrencyAssets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiariespaéafunctional currency is the local currency,teaaslated into
U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates. Incamesapense items are translated at the averageafgxchange prevailing during the period.
The adjustments resulting from translating therfial statements of foreign subsidiaries are inetlith Accumulated other comprehensive
(OCL), a component of Stockholders’ Equity, anduded in net earnings only upon sale or liquidatibthe underlying foreign subsidiary or
affiliated company. Foreign currency transactiomgand losses are recognized in net earnings lmasdiferences between foreign exchar
rates on the transaction date and on the settledatet
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(e) Derivative Financial Instrument3he Company is required to recognize all of itd\dgive instruments as either assets or liabilities
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair valbe. dccounting for changes in the fair value (geins or losses) of a derivative instrument
depends on whether it has been designated, affédsive, as a hedge and further, on the type dbjirgy relationship. For those derivative
instruments that are designated and qualify asihgdgstruments, a company must designate the hgdgstrument, based upon the exposure
being hedged, as a fair value hedge, cash flowéedg hedge of a net investment in a foreign djperaGains and losses related to a hedge
are either recognized in income immediately toeiffee gain or loss on the hedged item or are @feand reported as a component of
Accumulated OCL in Stockholders' Equity and subsetjy recognized in Net income when the hedged #éfects Net income. The change in
fair value of the ineffective portion of a finankiastrument is recognized in Net income immediat&he gain or loss related to financial
instruments that are not designated as hedges@wgrized immediately in Net income.

Derivative financial instruments are used in thenmal course of business to manage interest ratéogeigin currency exchange risks.
Credit risk is managed through the selection ohsdinancial institutions as counterparties. Thenpany does not apply hedge accounting to
the foreign currency forward contracts used toeiféurrency-related changes in the fair value ofif currency denominated assets and
liabilities. These contracts are marked-to-marketugh earnings.

(f) Cash and Cash EquivalentSash and cash equivalents consist of all highlyidignvestments with initial maturities of three ntlos
or less.

(9) Inventorieslnventories are stated at the lower of cost or miadetermined by the first-in, first-out methodlaonsist of the
following:

December 31

2011 2010
Finished good $ 67,53 $ 53,36
Work-in-process 9,08¢ 5,54¢
Raw materials and suppli 14,59: 10,94
$ 91,21 $ 69,85¢

(h)Property, Plant and EquipmerRroperty, plant and equipment are carried at dost@uisition date and are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useftddias follows:

Estimated
Useful Lives
Buildings 25-30 year
Computer equipmet 3-5 year:
Leasehold improvemen 4-7 year
Machinery equipmer 3-7 year:
Office furniture and fixture 5-7 year

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shoftthe life of the lease or seven years. The @om allocates depreciation and
amortization to cost of sales and within each tiem of operating expenses.
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() Long-Lived Assetd.ong-lived assets are reviewed for impairment wkenevents or changes in circumstances indicatetia
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&aeoverability of long-lived assets is assessed bymparison of the carrying amount of
the asset to the estimated future undiscountedastt flows expected to be generated by the asgebop of assets. If estimated future
undiscounted net cash flows are less than theingramount of the asset or group of assets, thet @ssonsidered impaired and an expense is
recorded in an amount required to reduce the cagrgmount of the asset to its then fair value. ¥#alue generally is determined from
estimated discounted future net cash flows (foetadseld for use) or net realizable value (for &skeld for sale).

() Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetatangible assets with finite useful lives are atized over their respective estimated useful
lives to their estimated residual values and reet¥or impairment whenever events or changes augistances indicate an impairment may
have occurred. The Company performs an annual rmgai test on all existing goodwill and other irid&é lived assets on October 1 of each
year and whenever events or circumstances makeré likely than not that impairment may have ocedriThe Company reviewed goodv
for impairment based on its identified reportingtsinwhich include the Company’s North American dmiggrnational operating segments. In
conducting the impairment test, the fair value adleof the Company’s reporting units is compareitistoespective carrying amount including
goodwill. If the fair value exceeds the carryingamt, then no impairment exists. If the carryingoamt exceeds the fair value, further analysis
is performed to assess impairment. The Company&rménation of fair value of the reporting unitsbigsed on an income approach, with an
appropriate risk adjusted discount rate, and a etafproach. Any identified impairment would resalan adjustment to the Company’s
results of operations. The Company also testadsfinite-lived intangible assets, principally teagiarks, for impairment using a “relief-from-
royalty” method. Significant assumptions inherenttie methodologies are employed and include ssiimates as royalty and discount rates.
The Company performed its annual impairment tegioofdwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset2il1, 2010 and 2009, none of which
resulted in the recognition of impairment chardes. further information on Goodwill and Other inggiole assets see Note 3.

(k) Accrued Sales Returnshe Company allows product returns up to 120 dalysviing a sale through certain sales channelscend
certain products. Estimated sales returns are gedvat the time of sale based on historical sdleartel return rates. The level of sales returns
differs by channel with the Direct channel typigadikperiencing the highest rate of return. Estaddtiture obligations related to these prod
are provided by a reduction of sales in the peirnoahich the revenue is recognized. Accrued sadasms are included in Accrued expenses
and other current liabilities in the accompanyiran€olidated Balance Sheets.

The Company had the following activity foresteturns from December 31, 2009 to December(@®1,:2

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4,23:
Amounts accrue 46,97¢
Returns charged to accrual (46,809

Balance as of December 31, 2( 4,40z
Amounts accrue 48,62¢
Returns charged to accrt (47,74

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 5,28t

() Warranties.The Company provides a 20-year warranty for Nonthefican sales and a 15-year warranty for Internatieales on
mattresses, each prorated for the last 10 yeaessCbimpany also provides a 2-year to 3-year warramtyillows. Estimated future obligations
related to these products are charged to costes sathe period in which the related revenuecgnized. Estimates of warranty expenses are
based primarily on historical claim experience anatuct testing. Warranties are included in Accraggenses and other current liabilities in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The Company had the following activity for warrastifrom December 31, 2009 to December 31, 2011:

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4,057
Amounts accrue 4,16(
Warranties charged to accrual (4,13)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 4,081
Amounts accrue 5,32t
Warranties charged to accrt (5,126

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4,28(

(m) Income TaxedDeferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfeethe future tax consequences attributable tqptaary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounexisiting assets and liabilities and their respediax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratpe@rd to apply to taxable income in the yearshitiwthose temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Deferredds&ta are also recognized for the estimated fefifeets of tax loss carry forwards. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred taxes is rezediin the period in which the enactment datesigha Valuation allowances are established
when necessary on a jurisdictional basis to redieferred tax assets to the amounts expected tedieed. The Company accounts for
uncertain foreign and domestic tax positions Uitiliza proscribed recognition threshold and measerem@ttributes for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position takezxpected to be taken in a tax return.

(n) Revenue RecognitioBales of products are recognized when persuasideree of an arrangement exists, products are stlippd
title passes to customers and the risks and revedrolsnership are transferred, the sales pricxéifor determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured. The Company extends volumeutiteto certain customers and reflects these atmasra reduction of sales. The
Company also reports sales net of tax assesseddhjying governmental authorities. The Companyeexis credit based on the
creditworthiness of its customers. No collaterakiguired on sales made in the normal course ohess.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Compsaingst estimate of the amount of probable cred#ids in the Company’s existing
accounts receivable. The Company regularly revidwsadequacy of its allowance for doubtful acceurithe Company determines the
allowance based on historical write-off experieand current economic conditions and also consii@etsrs such as customer credit, past
transaction history with the customer and changesistomer payment terms when determining whetteecollection of a receivable is
reasonably assured. Account balances are charfjadaifst the allowance after all reasonable meéuosllection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote. Thanadnce for doubtful accounts included in Accouriseivable, net in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets was $6,801 and $7#48f7ecember 31, 2011 and 2016spectively.

The Company reflects all amounts billed to custaniier shipping and handling in Net sales and thetscimcurred from shipping and
handling product in Cost of sales. Amounts inclugheNet sales for shipping and handling were apnakely $5,959, $6,089 and $5,207 for
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 28§%atively. Amounts included in Cost of salesstipping and handling were $101,224,
$87,651 and $68,152 for the years ended Decemb&031, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(o)Cost of SalesCosts associated with Net sales are recordedsh @ sales. Costs of sales includes the costsceifving,
producing, inspecting, warehousing, insuring, amgging goods during the period, as well as deptém and amortization of lonlyed asset
used in these processes.

(p) Sales promotions and incentive#t the time of sale, the Company records anregtt for sales promotion and incentive ci
Examples of sales promotion and incentive programstide cash discounts, funds for promotional ararket activities, voluméase:
incentive programs and other sales discounts aoth@ional programs. For customer incentives thastnibe earned, the Company mz
estimates related to the contractual terms, cust@adormance and sales volume to determine tfa &mhounts earned. The expense of
program is classified either as a reduction fromeneies and presented within net sales, or as aamnpof selling and market expenses, it
Consolidated Statements of Income.
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(q)Advertising CostsThe Company expenses advertising costs as incarazpt for production costs and advance paymeihishw
are deferred and expensed when advertisementsrdmef first time. Direct response advance paymargsieferred and amortized over the life
of the program. Advertising costs are included éfli®g and marketing expenses in the accompanyims@lidated Statements of Income.
Advertising costs charged to expense were $148FH) 611 and $69,324 for the years ended Decenih@03 1, 2010 and 2009, respectiv:
Advertising costs include expenditures for shambaising costs that the company reimburses ttoousrs under its integrated advertising
program. These obligations are accrued and expemsed the related revenues are recognized. Adirggteosts deferred and included in
Prepaid expenses and other current assets in ¢tbenpanying Consolidated Balance Sheets were $306%7,481 as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

(r)Research and Development ExpenResearch and development expenses for new progiecexpensed as they are incurred and
included in General, administrative and other egpsrin the accompanying Consolidated Statemertgofe. Research and development
costs charged to expense were approximately $9§30817 and $6,458 for the years ended Decemb&031, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(s)Stock-Based Compensatidihe Company accounts for stock-based payment ttasa in which the Company receives
employee services in exchange for (a) equity imsémts of the Company or (b) liabilities that aredzhon the fair value of the Company’s
equity instruments or that may be settled by teedace of such equity instruments. Stock-based ensgtion cost for restricted stock units
(RSUs), performance restricted stock units (PR3ldd)deferred stock units (DSUs) is measured basddeoclosing fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Shaded compensation cost for stock options is ettt the grant date based on each
option’s fair-value as calculated by the Black-Sebkmption-pricing model. The Company recognizesksbased compensation cost as exp
for awards other than its PRSUs ratably on a ditdige basis over the requisite service perioce Tompany recognizes stock-based
compensation cost associated with its PRSUs oeerettjuisite service period if it is probable thet performance conditions will be satisfied.
The Company will recognize a benefit from stockdzhsompensation in equity if an incremental taxdbiéms realized by following the
ordering provisions of the tax law. Further infotioa regarding stock-based compensation can bedfouNote 9, “Stock-Based
Compensation.”

(t) Treasury StockThe Board of Directors may authorize share repuwebaf the Company’s common stock (Share Repurchase
Authorizations). Share repurchases under these@zdions may be made through open market tralosectnegotiated purchase or otherwise,
at times and in such amounts as the Company, anthanittee of the Board, deem appropriate. Shapmscbased under Share Repurchase
Authorizations are held in treasury for generapooate purposes, including issuances under vagémpoyee share-based award plans.
Treasury shares are accounted for under the cabbohand reported as a reduction of Stockholdegsitle. Share Repurchase Authorizations
may be suspended, limited or terminated at any tiitigout notice.

(u)Fair Value Measurement$he Company applies fair value accounting foriatcial assets and liabilities and non-financial
assets and liabilities that are recognized or disd at fair value in the financial statements oacarring basis. The Company defines fair v
as the price that would be received from sellingsset or paid to transfer a liability in an orgeéransaction between market participants at the
measurement date. When determining the fair vale@sorements for assets and liabilities, the Compangiders the principal or most
advantageous market in which the Company wouldstreinand the market-based risk measurements anptisus that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability, sushigherent risk, transfer restrictions and creidk.r

(v) Subsequent Event©n January 23, 2012, the Company’s Board of Dirsdierminated the remaining authority under thg Jul
2011 authorization, as amended in October 2011appcbved a new share repurchase authorizatiop tf $250,000 of the Company’s
common stock. Share repurchases under this austioriznay be made through open market transactmgstiated purchases or otherwise, at
times and in such amounts as management and a tie@wi the Board deem appropriate; these repueshasy be funded by operating cash
flows and/or borrowings under our Senior Creditifttc This share repurchase program may be limigepended or terminated at any time
without notice.
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(2) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standaramr& (FASB) issued new guidance requiring the prasien of othe
comprehensive income in a statement presentedegitial prominence to the other primary financialesteents. The new guidance elimini
the current option to report other comprehensiveiime and its components in the statement of stdd&hs) equity and requires one of t
alternatives for the presentation of items of Mebme and other comprehensive income: (1) in desicontinuous statement referred to as
statement of comprehensive income, or (2) in twiasse, but consecutive statements. Under eittemative, each component of net inc
and each component of other comprehensive incoogether with totals for each, as well as total caghpnsive income would need to
displayed. The new guidance is effective beginnwith the filing of our Form 10 for the three months ending March 31, 2012,
retrospective application required. As the new goa® only affects the presentation of other congmeive income, it will not have a mate
impact on the Company's results of operationsnfiied condition, or cash flows.

(3) Goodwill and Other intangible assets

The following summarizes changes to the ComisaBoodwill, by reportable business segment:

Au\?arrtirc]: a International Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 89,92¢ $ 103,46: $ 193,39:
Foreign currency translation adjustme 421 75 49¢
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio 18,58 — 18,58:
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 108,93. $ 103,53 $ 212,46¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme (427) (205) (532
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio — 1,337 1,337
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 108,50: $ 104,76¢ $ 213,27

On April 1, 2010, the Company acquired itsdhparty distributor in Canada. The total amountash paid for the acquisition was
$18,692. Additional payments may be made to theéorowners if certain financial targets are me#;fdir value of these payments as of the
acquisition date was $6,241. Accordingly, the asitjon date fair value of the consideration trarmsfé was $24,933. During 2011, the
Company reduced the fair value of the contingensiteration and recorded a benefit to the incomstent of $1,825.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduahhe acquisition date. The
Company has finalized its purchase price allocation

Net working capita $ 45
Deferred tax liability (1,955
Property, plant and equipme 32
Intangible asset 7,52
Goodwill 18,58
Total purchase price $ 24,93

Intangible assets are comprised of $5,63%a@l® reacquired rights with a useful life of Jaygand $1,890 related to customer
relationships with a useful life of 5 years. Thedwill was assigned to the North American segnaeitthe North American reporting unit for
the Company’s annual goodwill impairment testingni of the goodwill is expected to be deductibleiicome tax purposes.

On July 4, 2011, the Company acquired the busiok#s third party distributor in South Korea. TBempany paid $4,566 in cash to
acquire this entity with additional future paymetatgormer owners required based on certain firgrazid operational targets. Assets acquired
include certain Intangible assets, InventoriespBrty, plant and equipment, and Prepaid expengksther current assets, with the remaining
consideration allocated to Goodwill.
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The following table summarizes informatiorateig to the Company’s Other intangible assets:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Useful Gross Net Gross Net
Lives Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulatec Carrying
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Unamortized indefinitdife
intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 55,00( $ — $ 55,00( $ 55,00( $ — $ 55,00(
Amortized intangible asset
Technology 10 $ 16,000 $ 14,667 $ 1,33¢ $ 16,000 $ 13,067 $ 2,93:
Patents & othetrademarks 5-20 12,54¢ 9,18( 3,36¢ 12,06: 8,57¢ 3,48¢
Customer databa: 5 4,92¢ 4,92¢ — 4,81% 4,691 122
Foam formule 10 3,70( 3,392 30¢ 3,70( 3,022 67¢
Reacquired right 3 5,63¢ 3,28¢ 2,34¢ 5,761 1,44( 4,327
Customer relationships 5 4,98¢ 854 4,13 2,492 29t 2,19
Total $ 102,80 $ 36,31( $ 66,49, $ 99,83 $ 31,09 $ 68,74"

Amortization expense relating to intangible aséatshe Company was $5,376, $4,362 and $2,41hyears ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. No impairmehtgpodwill or other intangible assets have adjushexigross carrying amount of these
assets in any period.

Annual amortization of intangible assets is expagttebe as follows:

Year Ending December 3

2012 $ 5,074
2013 2,02¢
2014 1,35¢
2015 96¢€
2016 60z

(4) Long-term Debt

(a)Long-term DebtLong-term debt for the Company consisted of thiofahg:

December 31,

2011 2010
Senior Credit Facility:
Domestic Lon-Term Revolving Credit Facility payable to lendeéngéerest at Base Rate or LIBOR pl
applicable margin (2.05% and 1.87% as of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2@%pectively), commitment through and due June 28
2016 $ 585,000 $ 407,00(
Long-term debt $ 585,00( $ 407,00(
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(b) Secured Credit Financin@n October 18, 2005, the Company entered into ditagreement (Senior Credit Facility) with a
syndicate of banks. On June 28, 2011, the Compam@nded and restated its Senior Credit Facilittaraended, which increased the total
availability under the Senior Credit Facility to aggregate of $770,000, added an option to incréaseestic availability by an additional
$250,000, extended the maturity date to June 2B5,28nd increased the applicable margins and ndgas to current market conditions.

The Senior Credit Facility consists of domestic &reign credit facilities (Revolvers) that provifte the incurrence of indebtedness up
to an aggregate principal amount of $770,000. Tdmaestic credit facility is a five-year, $745,000atving credit facility. The foreign credit
facility is a five-year, $25,000 revolving creditdility. The Revolvers provide for the issuancéetifers of credit and bank guarantees
(Contingent Liabilities) which, when issued, congg usage and reduce availability under the RersIvl he aggregate amount of Contingent
Liabilities outstanding under the Revolvers was@®88December 31, 2011. After giving effect to Gogent Liabilities and $585,000 in
borrowings under the Revolvers, total availabilit/der the Revolvers was $184,010 as of Decembe2@1l,. Both credit facilities bear inter
at a rate equal to the applicable margin, as détedrin accordance with a performance pricing ggdforth in the Senior Credit Facility, plus
one of the following indexes: London Inter-Bank @fhg Rate (LIBOR) and for U.S. dollar-denominale@ins only, a base rate. The base rate
of U.S. dollardenominated loans is defined as the higher of dnekEf America prime rate or the Federal Fundsphte 0.50%. The Compal
also pays an annual commitment fee on the unusedrtnof the Senior Credit Facility. The commitmé&# is calculated based on the
consolidated leverage ratio and ranges from 0.3%56@650%.

The Senior Credit Facility is guaranteed by Temipadic International, as well as certain other slibges of Tempur-Pedic
International, and is secured by certain fixed iata@hgible assets of Dan-Foam ApS and substantdlithe Company U.S. assets. The Ser
Credit Facility contains certain financial coversmand requirements affecting the Company, includiltgnsolidated interest coverage ratio
a consolidated leverage ratio. The Company wasfimptiance with all covenants as of December 311201

In conjunction with the Company amending and r@wgats Senior Credit Facility, $6,217 of deferfathncing costs were capitalized
and will be amortized over the five year extension.

On August 8, 2011, the Company entered into a jear-interest rate swap agreement to manage intasts and the risk associated
with changing interest rates associated with th@deCredit Facility. Refer to Note 6, “Derivati@nancial Instruments” for additional
information regarding the Company'’s derivative instents, including this interest rate swap.

(5) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thatidvioe received for an asset or paid to transfetbdlity (an exit price) in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset andityaian orderly transaction between market giptints at the measurement date. The
Company estimates fair value of its financial instents utilizing an established three-level hidrard he hierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an agséability as of the measurement date as follows

e |evel 1- Valuation is based upon unadjusted quoted priceslémtical assets or liabilities in active marki

e Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricesimilar assets and liabilities in active marketsother inputs that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirggtfor substantially the full term of the finantiastruments

e Level 3—Valuation is based upon other unobservable infatsdre significant to the fair value measureme
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The classification of fair value measurements witihie hierarchy is based upon the lowest levehpfii that is significant to the
measurement. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, thg@ay had an interest rate swap, foreign curreoydrd contracts and contingent
considerations recorded at fair value. The faiugalof these instruments were measured using i@isdiased upon quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets (Leved2)l are valued by reference to similar financiatriiments, adjusted for credit risk and
restrictions and other terms specific to the cantsrarhe following table provides a summary by lefehe fair value of financial instruments
that are measured on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements at December 3!

2011 Using:
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31 Assets Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contrac $ 93t $ — $ 93t $ —
Interest rate swa $ 2,61€ $ — % 2,61¢ $ —
Fair Value Measurements at December 3:
2010 using:
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
December 31 Assets Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contrac $ 67¢ $ — $ 67¢€ $ —
Interest rate swa $ 1,43( $ — % 1,43( $ —

The carrying value of Cash and cash equiva)ektcounts receivable and Accounts payable apprate fair value because of the
shortterm maturity of those instruments. Borrowings uritie Senior Credit Facility (as defined in Not(§d) are at variable interest rates .
accordingly their carrying amounts approximate Yailue.

(6) Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Companypssed to certain risks related to fluctuationsieriest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company uses various derivaivieacts, primarily interest rate swaps and tpraurrency exchange forward contracts,
to manage risks from these market fluctuations. firf@ncial instruments used by the Company arégsttdorward, nonleveraged instrument
The counterparties to these financial instrumergdiaancial institutions with strong credit rat;ygrhe Company maintains control over the
size of positions entered into with any one coyragly and regularly monitors the credit ratingshefse institutions.
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Interest Rate Ris

The Company is exposed to changes in inteagss on its Senior Credit Facility. In order tonmage this risk, on August 8, 2011, the
Company entered into a four-year interest rate ssggipement to manage interest costs and the sskiased with changing interest rates. The
Company designated this interest rate swap ashefloas hedge of floating rate borrowings and expebe hedge to be highly effective in
offsetting fluctuations in the designated intefgsyments resulting from changes in the benchmaekest rate. The gains and losses on the
designated swap agreement will offset losses amd ga the transactions being hedged. The Compamyafly documented the effectiveness
of this qualifying hedge instrument (both at thegption of the swap and on an ongoing basis) isettiig changes in cash flows of the hedged
transaction. The fair value of the interest rates\s calculated as described in Note 5, “Fair ¥altiFinancial Instruments”, taking into
consideration current interest rates and the ctioremlitworthiness of the counterparties or the @any, as applicable.

As a result of this swap, the Company will pay iiegt at a fixed rate and receive payment at abariate beginning on December 30,
2011. The swap effectively fixes the floating LIB@Rsed interest rate to 1.25% on $250,000 of th&tanding balance under the Senior
Credit Facility, with the outstanding balance sabje the swap declining over time. The interest gvap expires on December 30, 2015. The
Company will select the LIBORased rate on the hedged portion of the SenioritFadility during the term of the swap. The effeetportion
of the change in value of the swap is reflected asmponent of comprehensive income and recogrigéaterest expense, net as payments are
paid or accrued. The remaining gain or loss in sx@d the cumulative change in the present valukeofuture cash flows of the hedged iter
any (i.e., the ineffective portion) or hedge comguts excluded from the assessment of effectivemressecognized as Interest expense, net
during the current period.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Company is exposed to foreign currendyné$ated to intercompany debt and associateddstgrayments. To manage the risk
associated with fluctuations in foreign currenctbg, Company enters into foreign currency forwadtracts. The Company does not designate
any of these foreign currency forward contracthedging instruments, however, the Company consitiersontracts as economic hedges.
Accordingly, changes in the fair value of thesdrinments effect earnings during the current peridekse foreign currency forward contracts
protect against the reduction in value of foreah$beeign currency cash flows resulting from paytsén foreign currencies. The fair value of
foreign currency agreements are estimated as Besii Note 5, “Fair Value of Financial Instrumérttking into consideration foreign
currency rates and the current creditworthinegh@tounterparties or the Company, as applicable.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had foreigreaay forward contracts with expiration dates itaggrom January 31, 2012
through April 27, 2012. The changes in fair valfi¢hese foreign currency hedges are included asrgponent of Other (expense) income, net.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had the fatigwutstanding foreign currency forward contracts:

Currency
Foreign Currenc' Denominatior
Great Britain Pouni £ 2,14¢
Japanese Ye ¥ 472,62:
Swedish Kronz kr. 18,83¢
Norwegian Krone kr. 3,591
Australian Dollar $ 1,831
New Zealand Dolla $ 2,04¢
Singapore Dolla $ 512
United States Dolla $ 7,234
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the faneaf the Company’s derivative instruments weremded as follows:

Liability Derivatives

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedg
instruments
Interest rate swar current Accrued expenses and ott Accrued expenses and otl
current liabilities $ 1,471 current liabilities $ 1,43(
Interest rate swap- nor- Other nol-current liabilities 1,14t Other noi-current liabilities —
current
$ 2,61¢ $ 1,43(
Derivatives not designated as hedgin
instruments
Foreign exchange forma  Accrued expenses and ott Accrued expenses and otl
contracts current liabilities $ 93t current liabilities $ 67¢€
$ 3,551 $ 2,10¢

The effect of derivative instruments on then€alidated Statements of Income for the year efstmber 31, 2011 was as follows:

Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Recognized
Amount of in Income
Amount of Gain/ Gain/(Loss) on Derivative
(Loss) Reclassified (Ineffective
Recognized in from Location of Gain/(Loss) Portion
Accumulated Location of Gain/(Loss) Accumulated Recognized in Income on and Amount
OCL on Reclassified from OCL Derivative (Ineffective Excluded
Derivatives Designated a Derivative Accumulated OCL into  into Income Portion and Amount from
Cash Flow Hedging (Effective Income (Effective Excluded from Effectiveness
Relationships Portion) (Effective Portion) Portion) Effectiveness Testing) Testing)
Interest rate swa $ (1,1¢) Interest expense, n $ (1,44€) Interest expense, n $ =
Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Location of Gain/(Loss) Recognized ir
Recognized in Income on Income
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instrument Derivative on Derivative
Foreign exchange forward contra Other (expense) income, r $ 937
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For the year ended December 31, 2010:

Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Recognized ir
Amount of Income
Amount of Gain/(Loss) on Derivative
Gain/(Loss) Reclassified (Ineffective
Recognized ir from Location of Gain/(Loss) Portion
Accumulated Location of Gain/(Loss) Accumulated Recognized in Income on and Amount
OCL on Reclassified from OCL Derivative (Ineffective Excluded
Derivatives Designated a Derivative Accumulated OCL into  into Income Portion and Amount from
Cash Flow Hedging (Effective Income (Effective Excluded from Effectiveness
Relationships Portion) (Effective Portion) Portion) Effectiveness Testing) Testing
Interest rate swa $ 5,43% Interest expense, n $ (6,642 Interest expense, n $ =
Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Location of Gain/(Loss) Recognized ir
Recognized in Income on Income
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instrument Derivative on Derivative
Foreign exchange forward contra Other (expense) income, r $ (2,309

(7) Stockholders’ Equity

(a) Capital stockTempur-Pedic International has 300,000 authoribhades of common stock with $0.01 per share parevahd 10,000
authorized shares of preferred stock. The holdketiseocommon stock are entitled to one vote fohestare held of record on all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Subject tdguemces that may be applicable to any outstangliefgrred stock, holders of common stock
are entitled to receive ratably such dividends ag be declared from time to time by the Board a&biors out of funds legally available for
that purpose. In the event of liquidation, dissolutor winding up, the holders of common stockemétled to share ratably in all assets
remaining after payment of liabilities, subjectptor distribution rights of preferred stock, ifygrthen outstanding.

Tempur-Pedic International is authorized suésup to 10,000 shares of preferred stock, $0¥aqdue per share. The Board of
Directors is authorized, subject to any limitatigmescribed by law, without further vote or actlmnthe stockholders, to issue from time to 1
shares of preferred stock in one or more seriesh Bach series of preferred stock will have suahler of shares, designations, preferences,
voting powers, qualifications, and special or iigkatights or privileges as determined by the BaarDirectors, which may include, among
others, dividend rights, voting rights, redemptéond sinking fund provisions, liquidation preferesiceonversion rights and preemptive rights.
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(b) Share Repurchase Prograniuring 2011, the Company purchased 6,511 shardedompany’s common stock for a total cost of
$368,493 pursuant to authorizations made by thef@oyis Board of Directors. On January 23, 2012 Gbenpany’s Board of Directors
terminated the remaining authority under the J@¥?authorization, as amended in October 2011 appdoved a new share repurchase
authorization of up to $250,000 of the Company’siown stock. Share repurchases under this authiorizaiay be made through open market
transactions, negotiated purchases or otherwigenes and in such amounts as management and aittesnof the Board deem appropriate;
these repurchases may be funded by operating kagh énd/or borrowings under our Senior Credit RgciThis share repurchase program
may be limited, suspended or terminated at any tiitigout notice.

(8) Other Items
(a) Property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment, net consisted ofahewing:

December 31

2011 2010
Land and building: $ 121,79: % 121,18t
Machinery and equipment, furniture and fixturesj ather 225,52: 208,31(
Construction in progress 14,77 9,85¢
362,09: 339,35¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (201,59() (179,549

$ 160,50: $ 159,80°

Depreciation expense for the Company was $28,98,999 and $29,010 for the years ended Decemb&031, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

(b) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities sbed of the following:

December 31

2011 2010

Salary and related expens $ 24,26F $ 22,17:
Accrued unrecognized tax benel 16,10¢ 12,03t
Accrued sales and value added te 8,49 10,61«
Advertising accrua 6,98¢ 6,981
Warranty accrug 4,28( 4,081
Sales return 5,28¢ 4,40:
Other 27,311 25,18t

$ 92,737 $ 85,46¢

F-19




Table of Content

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(c) Accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consistedeofdllowing:

December 31

2011 2010
Derivative instruments accounted for as hedgespfntatx of $1,020 and $5¢ $ (1,59%) $ (872)
Foreign currency translation (13,090 (5,316
Accumulated other comprehensive I $ (14,686 $ (6,18¢)

(9) Stock-based Compensation

Tempur-Pedic International has two stock-based emsgtion plans which provide for grants of non-tjieal and incentive stock
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted lstaad stock unit awards, performance shares, gfais and performance based awards to
employees, non-employee directors, consultantsCamdpany advisors. The plans under which equity dsvaray be granted are the 2002
Option Plan and the Amended and Restated 2003\Ekpaientive Plan, as amended, (the 2003 Plan). pterRedic International also has a
stock-based compensation plan which permits ekgéphployees to purchase its shares at a discoprited subject to certain guidelines set
forth by its 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plaanasnded (ESPP). It is the policy of the Compariggoe stock out of Treasury shares upon
issuance or exercise of shdrased awards. The Company believes that awardguantdases made under these plans better aligntdrests ¢
the plan participants with those of its stockhadder

The 2002 Option Plan was adopted on November 12 28@ provides for grants of stock options to pasehshares of common stock to
employees and directors of the Company. Optionstgdaunder the 2002 Option Plan that qualify asmitive stock options, as defined by the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the)Cmast have an exercise price of not less tharfaihenarket value of Tempur-Pedic
International’s common stock at the date of gr@mtions granted under the 2002 Option Plan providedesting terms as determined by the
Board of Directors at the time of grant, which gemerally based on 4 years of continuous servipdofs can be exercised up to 10 years 1
the grant date and up to 5 years from the gramt fdetany stockholders who own 10% or more of thaltcombined voting power of all shares
of stock of Tempur-Pedic International. Upon tikereise of all outstanding options under the 20@#d Plan, Tempur-Pedic International
will issue a maximum of 6,534 shares of commonlstseabject to certain adjustment provisions. In &eber 2003, the Company’s Board of
Directors adopted a resolution that prohibitedHertgrants under the 2002 Stock Option Plan.

The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchade gprtain limits, as set forth in the ESPP, of PemPedic International’s common
stock annually over the course of two semi-annifakiong periods at a price of no less than 85%hefprice per share of Tempur-Pedic
International’s common stock either at the begigranthe end of each six-month offering period,ahieiver is less. The Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors administersESPP. The Board of Directors may amend or terraitted ESPP. The ESPP is intended to
comply with the requirements of Section 423 of @wele. The Company may issue a maximum of 500 sle&itsscommon stock under the
ESPP. Effective February 1, 2010, the Company sulgrkofferings under the ESPP indefinitely.

The 2003 Plan is administered by the Compens&@nmittee of the Board of Directors, which, togetwéh the Board of Director
has the exclusive authority to administer the 2B&®, including the power to determine eligibilioyreceive awards, the types and number of
shares of stock subject to the awards, the priddianing of awards and the acceleration or waifeany vesting and performance of forfeiture
restrictions, in each case subject to the terntseoR003 Plan. Any of the Company’s employees, employee directors, consultants and
Company advisors, as determined by the Compensatommittee, may be selected to participate in 9@82Plan. Tempur-Pedic International
may issue a maximum of 11,500 shares of its comstaek under the 2003 Plan.
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In 2010, the Compensation Committee of the BoarDicéctors approved the terms of a Long-Term InieenProgram (LTIP),
established under the 2003 Plan. The LTIP awardsisbof a mix of stock options and performanceebda®stricted stock units (PRSUS).
Shares with respect to the PRSUs will be granteldvast following the end of the applicable perfonte period and achievement of applice
performance metrics as determined by the Compeams@bmmittee of the Board of Directors.

The Company granted PRSUs during the years endeeniier 31, 2011 and 2010. The maximum number oésha be awarded unc
the PRSUs granted during the years ended Decemb031 and 2010 will be 443 shares and 411 shaspgctively; and will vest, if earned,
at the end of the three-year performance periothgrah December 31, 2013 and December 31, 201@2ec&sgely. Actual payout under the
PRSUs is dependent upon the achievement of céiaimcial goals, based on Net sales and Earninfr8énterest and Taxes (EBIT) margin
targets. The Company recognized compensation egps0,474 and $2,330 associated with the PRStsglthe years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. Based on current agtisof the performance metrics, unrecognized cosgi®n expense with respect to the
PRSUs was $8,886 as of December 31, 2011, whiekpiscted to be recorded over the weighted avergaining life of 1.5 years. A
summary of Tempur-Pedic International’'s unveste@&BRas of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and changeg doe years ended December
31, 2011 and 2010 are presented below:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Awards unvested at December 31, 2! — % —
Grantec 137 28.4¢
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Awards unvested at December 31, 2! 137 $ 28.4¢
Grantec 14¢ 46.6¢
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Awards unvested at December 31, 2! 28t $ 37.9:

During the year no PRSUs transferred ownership.agggegate intrinsic value of PRSUs outstandingf&ecember 31, 2011 was
$14,943.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes optionrgrimodel to calculate the fair value of stock op§ granted. The assumptions used
in the Black-Scholes pricing model for the yeardexhDecember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are setifotiie following table. Expected
volatility is based on the unbiased standard dewviatf Tempur-Pedic International’'s common stockmothe option term. The expected life of
the options represents the period of time thatbmpany expects the options granted to be outstgnd@he risk-free rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of tharg of the option for the expected term of therimaent. The dividend yield reflects an
estimate of dividend payouts over the term of tivara.

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Expected volatility range of stoc 72— 74% 69— 84% 62-92%
Expected life of option, range in ye: 3.0-4.C 2.0-5.C 2.0-5.C
Risk-free interest rate rang 0.7-1.7% 1.0-2.7% 1.0-2.8%
Expected dividend yield on sto 0.0-0.7% 0.0-1.€% 0.0-5.2%

F-21




Table of Content

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

A summary of Tempur-Pedic International’s unvesbdres relating to stock options as of Decembe@1] and 2010 and changes
during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@lfresented below:

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Options unvested at December 31, 2 3,712 % 4.3¢
Grantec 19¢ 13.9¢
Vested (2,499 5.2¢
Forfeited (18) 5.57
Options unvested at December 31, 2 239 % 4.57
Grantec 91 25.7¢
Vested (2,099 5.01
Forfeited (53) 4.5¢
Options unvested at December 31, 2011 1,34C $ 5.44
A summary of stock options activity under the 2@)&ion Plan and 2003 Plan is presented below:
Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining  Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares ExercisePrice Term (Years) Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 6,81¢ $ 13.4;
Grantec 19¢ 28.6¢
Exercisec (1,83)) 15.5¢
Terminatec (19 13.52
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 5167 $ 13.31
Grantec 91 49.1¢
Exercisec (1,797) 19.27
Terminatec (53 11.67
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 3,40¢ $ 11.1¢ 6.47 140,977
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 2,01t $ 14.3- 6.01 76,981

The total intrinsic value of options exercised thoe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200$5@%221, $29,881 and $1,604,
respectively.

The grant date fair value of stock optionseisognized as compensation expense on a straighbdisis over the requisite service
period, and the expense is expected to be recayoizer a weighted-average remaining period of #&ry as of December 31, 2011. The total
value of options vested during the years ended mbee 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $5,468, $7,943%3a8d 0, respectively. For the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Contpangnized $5,197, $7,509 and $8,513, respectieélstock-based compensation
related to stock options granted under the 2008.a of December 31, 2011, there was $4,191 oaunesl stocksased compensation expe
related to these options. The future amortizatiothese unearned stock-based compensation costsenl,943 in 2012; $1,100 in 2013;
and $148 in 2014.
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The Company granted 9 awards during the year ebDdedmber 31, 2011 that consisted of restricteckatais (RSUs) and deferred
stock units (DSUSs). For the years ended Decembe2(@ll1, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized $2%12754 and $146, respectively, of
stock-based compensation expense related to RIUSSUS. As of December 31, 2011, there was $1,91Ar@cognized compensation
expense associated with the RSUs and DSUs, whiekpiscted to be recorded over the weighted avesagaining vesting period of 1.1 years.
A summary of Tempur-Pedic International’s unves®&1Js and DSUs as of December 31, 2011 and 2016remdjes during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are presented below:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Awards unvested at December 31, 2! 9 $ 14.9¢
Grantec 18¢ 28.7(
Vested (15) 22.3:
Forfeited (1) 28.3¢
Awards unvested at December 31, 2! 181 $ 28.5¢
Grantec 9 61.7:
Vested (12) 49.0Z
Forfeited (6) 28.3i
Awards unvested at December 31, 2 172 $ 28.9¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of RSU and DSUs tanting as of December 31, 2011 was $9,734.

Cash received from options exercised undestatlk-based compensation plans, including caghived from options issued from
treasury shares for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $26,256, $28,551 and $1688ectively.

(10) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Lease CommitmentsThe Company has various operating leases thidiocannual rental payments due in equal monthly
installments and a lease with a rent free occuppecdypd. The Company’s policy is to recognize exgeefor lease payment, including those
with escalating provisions and rent free periogisacstraight-line basis over the lease term. Opgydtase expenses were $8,390, $6,330, and
$6,148 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 20d@009, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, @Adé&r these non-cancelable leases are as follows:

Year Ended December &

2012 $ 7,25¢
2013 4,581
2014 3,32¢
2015 3,05¢
2016 2,38t
Thereaftel 2,95k

(b)Purchase Commitment#s of December 31, 2011, the Company had outstgrmbmmitments of approximately $15,700 for
capital expenditures related to the constructiothefCompany's corporate headquarters in Lexingtentucky. The Company will, from time
to time, enter into limited purchase commitmentstifi@ purchase of certain raw materials. Amounterodted under these programs are not
significant as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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(c) Antitrust Action.On January 5, 2007, a purported class action wes digainst the Company in the United States BisGourt for the
Northern District of Georgia, Rome Division (Jacabg empu-Pedic International, Inc. and TempRedic North America, Inc., or the Antitr
Action). The Antitrust Action alleges violation§ federal antitrust law arising from the pricing mpur-Pedic mattress products by Tempur-
Pedic North America and certain distributors. Baldon alleges a class of all purchasers of TenRmglic mattresses in the United States since
January 5, 2003, and seeks damages and injunetieé Count Two of the complaint was dismissedHry court on June 25, 2007, based on a
motion filed by the Company. Following a decisisatied by the United States Supreme Coureegin Creative Leather Prods., Inc. v. PSKS,
Inc. on June 28, 2007, the Company filed a motion tmdis the remaining two counts of the Antitrust Aoton July 10, 2007. On December
11, 2007, that motion was granted and, as a rggdiment was entered in favor of the Company aedtaintiffs’ complaint was dismissed
with prejudice. On December 21, 2007, the plaistiffied a “Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment,” whievas fully briefed. On May 1, 2008,
that motion was denied. Jacobs appealed the diaho§their claims, and the parties argued theeaplpefore the United States Circuit Court
for the Eleventh Circuit on December 11, 2008. Toeirt rendered an opinion favorable to the Compamipecember 2, 2010, affirming the
trial court’s refusal to allow Jacobs to alter arend its pleadings and dismissing its claims. Badms subsequently petitioned the 11th Circuit
Court of Appeals for an “en banc” review of theajudge paned'ruling. The Company continues to strongly belithat the Antitrust Actio
lacks merit, and intends to defend against thendaiigorously. Based on the findings of the coordate and an assessment of the Company’s
meritorious defenses, the Company believes thistré@mote that it will incur a loss with respecthis matter. However, due to the inherent
uncertainties of litigation, the Company cannotdicethe outcome of the Antitrust Action at thisid, and can give no assurance that these
claims will not have a material adverse affecttom €ompany’s financial position or results of opierss.

(d) New York Attorney Generdh December 2008, the Office of the Attorney Gehefahe State of New York, Antitrust Bureau (OA
requested that the Company consider discontinggngriilateral retail price policy (UPPL) in the &ta&f New York, and informed the Comp:
that it may bring an enforcement action againsiGhespany under New York law if the Company choseta@o so. On March 29, 2010, the
Office of the Attorney General filed suit in New Mostate court against the Company with respetiitomatter. The complaint does not ch
the Company with any violation of state or fedenatitrust law; instead it claims the Company vietht 1975 New York state law which
declares certain contractual provisions to be wreefble and not actionable at law and seeks, awitieg things, a permanent injunction
prohibiting the Company’s UPPL as well as unspediums for restitution and disgorgement of profitee Company responded to the
complaint and also filed motions to dismiss andlitain discovery. On September 28, 2010, the dweatd various motions filed by the parties
and took them under advisement. On January 14,,28&Tourt denied the OAG’s petition in full ancugted the Company’s motion to
dismiss. The OAG filed an appeal on February 22120he Company believes that its UPPL complieb siiate and federal law and intend
continue to vigorously defend it in this matter. dlaim for damages has been received by the Comgased on the findings of the court to
date and an assessment of the Comgamgritorious defenses, the Company believes tigtémote that it will incur a loss with respéethis
matter. However, due to the inherent uncertairdfdgigation, the Company cannot predict the omteoof this matter at this time, and can give
no assurance that these claims will not have anmahselverse affect on the Company’s financial piosior results of operations.

The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its businéee Company believes that the

outcome of all such pending legal proceedings énatigregate will not have a material adverse affedts business, financial condition,
liquidity, or operating results.
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(11) Income Taxes

Provision for Income TaxesThe Company'’s effective income tax provision eliff from the amount calculated using the statutbS;
federal income tax rate, principally due to thddaing:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Percentage Percentage Percentage
of Income of Income of Income
Amount Before Taxe: Amount Before Taxes Amount Before Taxes
Statutory U.S. federal incontax $ 114,93 35.(% $ 80,801 35.(% $ 44,80¢ 35.(%
State income taxes, netfederal benefi 7,92¢ 2.4 5,30: 2.3 1,611 1.3
Foreign tax differentis (9,43¢6) (2.9 (8,587) (3.7 (7,159 (5.6)
Change in valuatioallowances (5,879 (1.8 (957) (0.4) 1,03 0.8
Uncertain tax position 4,07( 1.2 (647 0.3 1,532 1.2
Subpart F incom 3,23¢ 1.C 2,927 1.3 2,08 1.€
Manufacturing deductio (5,046 (2.5) (3,999 2.7 (975) (0.9
Permanent and other (1,027) (0.9) (1,135 (0.€) 101 0.1
Effective income ta: provision $ 108,78: 33.1% $ 73,72( 31.¢% $ 43,04+ 33.6%

Subpart F income represents interest and royatiesed by a foreign subsidiary as well as saleerbgctertain foreign subsidiaries
outside of their country of incorporation. Undee f8ode, such income is taxable to Tempur-Pedicriat®mnal as if earned directly by Tempur-
Pedic International.

The Company has not provided for U.S. federalestatome and foreign withholding taxes on $299,460ndistributed earnings from
non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2011 be¢haggompany intends to reinvest such earningdiimtidy outside of the United
States. If TempuPRedic International were to distribute these egsiiforeign tax credits may become available ucderent law to reduce tt
resulting U.S. income tax liability. It is not ptaxable to estimate the amount of U.S. tax thathinize payable if these earnings were ever to be
remitted to the U.S.

The following sets forth the amount of Income beforcome taxes attributable to each of the Comangérating segments for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and :

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Income before income taxe
North America $ 224,60!' $ 137,69 $ 49,70:
International 103,78t 93,16¢ 78,33¢
Consolidatec $ 328,39. $ 230,86! $ 128,03
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U.S. GAAP prescribes a recognition threshold andsueement attribute for the accounting and findrste&tement disclosure of tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a taxmeThe evaluation of a tax position is a tetep process. The first step requires the Com
to determine whether it is more likely than nottthaax position will be sustained upon examinabased on the technical merits of the
position. The second step requires the Compangcdognize in the financial statements each tax iposihat meets the more likely than not
criteria, measured at the largest amount of betiedithas a greater than 50-percent likelihoodedriidprealized. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tacefitsris as follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 10,11:
Additions based on tax positions related to 2 37¢€
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 132
Reductions for tax positions as a result of adagfsapplicable statute of limitatiol (267)
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with tathatities (1,489

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 8,86¢
Additions based on tax positions related to 2 1,94:
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 2,57
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with tathatities (109

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 13,28:

The entire amount of unrecognized tax benefits @ambpact the effective tax rate if recognized. tage and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in incomexaense. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company
recognized approximately $(344), $732 and $538tierest and penalties, respectively, in incomeetgpense. The Company had
approximately $2,822 and $3,166 of accrued intexedtpenalties at December 31, 2011 and 2010, ctepls.

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company reegian income tax assessment from the Danish T#xabity with respect to the
2001, 2002 and 2003 tax years, an assessmentesitiect to the 2004 tax year during the third quaft®@010, and an assessment with respect
to the 2005 tax year during the second quartef@fl2 The tax assessments relate to the royaltylpaone of Tempur-Pedic International’s
U.S. subsidiaries to a Danish subsidiary and tts#tipa taken by the Danish Tax Authority could gpfa subsequent years. The total tax
assessment is approximately $103,050 includingésteand penalties. The Company filed timely conmpdawith the Danish National Tax
Tribunal denying the tax assessments. The NatibalTribunal formally agreed to place the Danisklitigation on hold pending the
outcome of a Bilateral Advance Pricing AgreemeritaiBral APA) between the United States and thei§lahax Authority. A Bilateral APA
involves an agreement between the Internal Rev8enéce (IRS) and the taxpayer, as well as a naigatiagreement with one or more foreign
competent authorities under applicable incomereaties. During the third quarter of 2008, the @any filed the Bilateral APA with the IRS
and the Danish Tax Authority. U.S. and Danish cetapt authorities met to discuss the Company’st@&ié APA during the first and fourth
quarters of 2011 and additional meetings are egpedihe Company believes it has meritorious defetséhe proposed adjustments and will
oppose the assessments in the Danish courts, essagg. It is reasonably possible the amount caognized tax benefits may change in the
next twelve months. An estimate of the amountughschange cannot be made at this time.

The Company or one of its subsidiaries fiteime tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdictiamg various states and foreign
jurisdictions. The Company was notified of an imgieg tax examination in the U.S. for the years®@0d 2009. With few exceptions, 1
Company is no longer subject to tax examinationthbyiRS in the U.S. for periods prior to 2007, stte and local municipalities for periods
prior to 2006, and in non-U.S. jurisdictions foripes prior to 2003. Additionally, the Company isrently under examination by various tax
authorities around the world. The Company antieipdt is reasonably possible an increase or dsereahe amount of unrecognized tax
benefits could be made in the next twelve monthes i@sult of the statute of limitations expiringléor the examinations being concluded on
these returns. However, the Company does not pitgsnticipate that any increase or decrease iaaggnized tax benefits will be material to
the consolidated financial statements.
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The Company’s foreign net operating lossesl(8)Qvere $36,787 and $31,712 as of December 311, a6d 2010, respectively.
These NOLs expire at various dates through 2028.ddmpany has established a valuation allowancedboperating loss carryforwards and
certain other deferred tax assets related to oefivaeign operations. Management believes thaed@n a number of factors, the available
objective evidence creates sufficient uncertairgarding the realizability of these foreign NOLslaertain other timing differences related to
some of its foreign operations. In assessingehézability of deferred tax assets, managemensidens whether it is more likely than not that
some portion of all of the deferred tax assets mall be realized. The ultimate realization of defdrtax assets is dependent upon the genel
of future taxable income during the periods in viahilse temporary differences become deductible. lgameent considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projecteduitgt taxable income and tax planning strategiesaking this assessment. Based upon the le\
historical taxable income and projections for fettaxable income, management believes it is mkedylthan not the Company will realize the
benefits of the deferred tax assets, other thasethelated to some of its foreign operations asudsed above. However, there can be no
assurance that such assets will be realized ifigistances change. During 2011, valuation allowaot8§,879 were reversed in certain fore
jurisdictions as earnings trends over the lastyfears now make it more likely than not that thefeted tax assets in these jurisdictions will
realized.

The Income tax provision includes federal, statel, f@reign income taxes currently payable and thizderred or prepaid because of
temporary differences between financial statemadttax bases of assets and liabilities. The Compatyrds income taxes under the liability
method. Under this method, deferred income taxeserognized for the estimated future tax effettdiferences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their financial repartaiimounts based on enacted tax laws.

The Income tax provision consisted of thedwihg:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Current provisior
Federa $ 76,89¢ $ 40,48 $ 27,66¢
State 11,98¢ 7,058 4,144
Foreign 28,42¢ 21,23t 18,51(
Total current 117,31: 68,77 50,32(
Deferred provisior
Federa (1,435 2,49¢ (9,357%)
State (155) 28t (73€)
Foreign (6,93) 2,16 2,81¢
Total deferred (8,52¢) 4,94¢€ (7,27€)
Total Income tax provision $ 108,78. $ 73,72( $ 43,04
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
The net deferred tax assets and liabilities recaghin the Consolidated Balance Sheet consistétedbllowing:

December 31

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset

Inventories $ 1,80C $ 1,98¢
Net operating losse 9,93: 9,93:
Property, plant and equipme 3,81( 3,231
Accrued expenses and ot} 18,74¢ 17,63¢
Total deferred tax asse 34,29: 32,78¢
Valuation allowance (2,937) (8,816
Total net deferred tax assets 31,35¢ 23,97(

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme (11,685 (11,949
Intangible assel (23,01) (24,59¢)
Accrued expenses and other (6,499 (6,027
Total deferred tax liabilitie (41,190 (42,560
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (9,836) $ (18,59()

(12) Major Customers

The top five customers accounted for approxima2éBp, 20% and 19% of the Company’s Net sales foydaes ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The top fiveausrs also accounted for approximately 19% and @fil&ecounts receivable as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(13) Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan (tle&Pivhereby eligible employees may contribute up5& of their pay subject to
certain limitations as defined by the Plan. Empésyare eligible to participate in the Plan afted@@s and are eligible to receive matching
contributions upon one year of employment with@wenpany. The Plan provides a 100% match of the3¥s and 50% of the next 2% of
eligible employee contributions. All matching cobtitions vest immediately. The Company incurredt®Z, $1,123 and $1,064 of expenses
associated with the Plan for the years ended DeeeBih 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

F-28




Table of Content

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(14) Earnings Per Common Share

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Numerator:
Net income $ 219,60¢ $ 157,14' $ 84,99:
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per common s— weighted average shar 67,07( 70,34¢ 74,93¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock based compensa 2,07¢ 2,444 1,11/
Denominator for diluted earnings per common sharadjusted weighted average share 69,14¢ 72,79: 76,04¢
Basic earnings per common shar $ 327 % 2.2 $ 1.13
Diluted earnings per common share $ 3.1t $ 2.1€ $ 1.12

The Company excluded 6 and 30 and 2,331 sharesbiesupon exercise of outstanding stock optionsHeryears ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, from the Diligachings per common share computation becausecttericise price was greater than the
average market price of the Company’s common stotkey were otherwise anti-dilutive. Holders ohmaeested stock-based compensation
awards do not maintain voting rights or maintaghts to receive any dividends thereon.

(15) Business Segment Information

The Company operates in two business segmentsh Manerica and International. These reportable segsrere strategic business u
that are managed separately based on the funddrdéfeeences in their operations. The North Amaricsegment consists of the two U.S.
manufacturing facilities and our North Americantdisution subsidiaries. Substantially all of the sales from external customers and long-
lived assets included in the tables below for oarthl American segment relate to our U.S. operatidhe International segment consists of the
manufacturing facility in Denmark, whose customiacdude all of the distribution subsidiaries anddtparty distributors outside the North
American segment. The Company evaluates segmeiorpance based on Net sales and Operating income.

The following table summarizes Total assets by ssgm

December 31 December 31

2011 2010
Total assets
North America $ 688,00. $ 576,13¢
Internationa 422,24¢ 338,68!
Inte-segment elimination (281,60) (198,82)

$ 828,64( $ 716,00:

The following table summarizes Long-lived assetségment:

December 31 December 31

2011 2010
North America $ 378,26° $ 383,42(
International 61,99¢ 57,60(

$ 440,26¢ $ 441,02(
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The following table summarizes segment information:

Net sales from external custome

North America
Mattresse:
Pillows
Other

International
Mattresse:
Pillows
Other

Intel-segment sale!
North America
International
Inter-segment eliminations

Gross profit:
North America
International

Operating income
North America
Internationa

Income before income taxe
North America
Internationa

Depreciation and amortization (including st-based compensation amortizatic

North America
Internationa

Capital expenditure:
North America
Internationa

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
$ 69340 $ 539,19¢ $ 366,92
75,56¢ 65,72¢ 48,81+
235,75 167,09 109,58

$  1,004,73' $ 772,02 $ 525,32
$ 250,94 $ 196,40( $ 183,02:
76,11¢ 64,83¢ 58,71¢

86,14: 72,15¢ 64,09:

$  41320. $ 333,39' $§ 305,83
$ 141793 $ 110542 $ 831,15
$ 4,95¢ $ 357 $ =
2,23¢ 2,397 2,502

(7,199 (2,754) (2,502)

$ — 3 — 3 —
$  499,80¢ $ 358,30t $ 222,57
243,28: 197,12: 171,17(

$ 743,09 $ 555,42 $ 393,74
$ 236,85 $ 152,83 $ 64,48"
103,67¢ 93,06¢ 80,45¢

$ 340,53 $ 24590; $ 144,94
$ 224,60t $ 137,69 $ 49,70:
103,78¢ 93,16¢ 78,33

$ 32839 $ 230,86! $ 128,03
$ 41,117 $ 34,88. $ 30,33:
9,871 9,08¢ 9,88.

$ 50,98t $ 43,96¢ $ 40,21
$ 18,79: $ 11,03¢ $ 8,067
10,67: 7,10: 6,23¢

$ 29,46¢ $ 18,14: $ 14,30:
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(16) Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The Company’s quarterly operating results fluctuzgte result of seasonal variations in the Comalnysiness.

Quarterly results of operations for the years erldedember 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized below:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2011
Net sales $ 325,83t $ 342,21: $ 383,08! $ 366,80:
Gross profil 170,31( 181,01¢ 200,59 191,16¢
Operating incom 75,28( 82,83( 96,60" 85,81
Net income 48,26( 53,08¢ 61,94¢ 56,31t
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.7C $ 0.7¢ $ 09: % 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 09C $ 0.8¢
2010
Net sales $ 253,88¢ $ 263,04: $ 295,78! $ 292,70:
Gross profi 124,80¢ 128,04: 150,75« 151,82:
Operating incomi 52,29( 53,85( 68,15¢ 71,60¢
Net income 33,14¢ 33,50¢ 44,19¢ 46,29:
Basic earnings per common sh $ 04t $ 047 $ 06 % 0.6¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.4 % 0.4€ $ 0.6z $ 0.6€

The sum of the quarterly earnings per common sh@a@unts may not equal the annual amount reportealise per share amounts are
computed independently for each quarter and fofuthgear based on respective weighted-averagentmmshares outstanding and other
dilutive potential common shares. The Company’stguly operating results fluctuate as a resultezfsonal variations in the Company’s
business.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2010 AND 201

SCHEDULE I
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to
Description Beginning of Costs and Other Balance at
Period Expenses Accounts Deductions  End of Period
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 6,72¢ $ 5,93t $ — $ (3,639 $ 9,03(
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 9,03( $ 531 $ —$ (2,129 $ 7,430
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 7,431 $ 1,56: $ — $ (2,199 $ 6,801
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to
Description Beginning of Costs and Other Balance at
Period Expenses Accounts Deductions  End of Period
Valuation allowance deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 8,73¢ $ 1,037 $ — $ — $ 9,77:
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 9,77 $ — $ — $ (957) $ 8,81¢
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 8,81¢ $ — $ — $ (5,879 % 2,931
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC.

State or Country of
Entity Organization

Tempur World LLC Delaware
Tempu-Pedic Management, In Delaware
Tempu-Pedic Manufacturing, Inc Delaware
Tempur Production USA, LL( Virginia

Dawn Sleep Technologies, Ir Delaware
Tempu-Pedic Sales, In Delaware
Tempu-Pedic North America, LL( Delaware
Tempu-Pedic Technologies, In Delaware
Tempu-Pedic America, LLC Delaware
Dar-Foam ApS Denmark

Tempur UK, Ltd.

Tempu-Pedic Canada Holding Company, Ul

United Kingdom
Canadz

1390658 Ontario Inc Canadz
Tempur Japan Yugen Kais Japar
Tempur International Limite United Kingdom
Tempur Danmark A/ Denmark
Tempur Suomi O\ Finland
Tempur Norge AS Norway
Tempur Sverige Al Sweder
Tempur Italia Sr Italy
Tempur France S.a.r France
Tempur Holding Gmb}t Germany
Tempur Sleep Center Gmk Germany
Tempur Deutschland Gmb Germany
Tempur Schweiz A( Switzerlanc
Tempur Pedic Esffia, S.A. Spain
Tempur Singapore Pte Lt Singapore
Tempur Benelux B.V Netherland:
Tempur Osterreich Gmb Austria
Tempur Australia Pty. Ltc Australia
Tempur New Zealand Lt New Zealanc
Tempur China Holding Co. Lt Hong Kong
Tempur Shanghai Holding L Hong Kong
Tempur Pedic (Shanghai) Trading Co., Shangha

Tempur Korea LTC

South Kores



Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

(1) (Form £-8 No. 33:-160821) pertaining to the Tem}-Pedic International Inc. Amended and Restated Zififity Incentive Plar

(2) (Form £-8 No. 33:-154966) pertaining to the Tem|-Pedic International Inc. Amended and Restated Hififity Incentive Plan, an

(3) (Form £-8 No. 33:-111545) pertaining to the 2003 Equity IncentivenPldne 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, anddf2 3toc
Option Plan of Tempi-Pedic International Inc

of our reports dated January 30, 2012, with resfoettte consolidated financial statements and sdbeaf Tempur-Pedic International Inc. and
Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internalrobotver financial reporting of Tempur-Pedic Intational Inc. and Subsidiaries, included in
this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Tempur-Pedic migtional Inc. and Subsidiaries for the year eridedember 31, 2011.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
January 30, 2012







Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14&), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Sarvary, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKempur-Pedic International Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financedarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgardang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséantad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sinifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

January 30, 201 By: /s MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officel




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14&), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dale E. Williams, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKempur-Pedic International Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financedarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgardang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sinifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

January 30, 201 By: /s/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, pursteah8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanedtdd 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, in his capacity as an officer of Tempur-Pédiernational Inc. (the “Company”), that, to hisdwledge, the Annual Report of the
Company on Form 10-K for the period ended DecerBlheR011, fully complies with the requirements etfon 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. § 78m8m(d)) and that the information contained in stegtort fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results arapions of the Company. This written statemefeisig furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission as an exhibit to such Form 18-8igned original of this statement has been igexV to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and furnished to the Seesiand Exchange Commission or its staff uponesqu

January 30, 201 By: /sl MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officel

January 30, 201 By: /s/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer




